REGULAR MEETING — 7:00 PM

1.
2.
3.

10.

REVISED

GRANDVIEW CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 12, 2019

CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

PRESENTATIONS

A Light Up the Town Award — Happy Watermelon

B. 2019 Proclamation — GHS Career and Technical Education Month 1
C. 25 Year Service Award — Gretchen Chronis, Parks & Recreation Director

D. Grandview Mobilization Group Project — WA State Main Street Program Affiliate —

Carmen Anders

PUBLIC COMMENT - At this time, the public may address the Council on any topic whether on the
agenda or not, except those scheduled for public hearing.

CONSENT AGENDA - Items on the Consent Agenda will be voted on together by the Council,
unless a Councilmember requests that items be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed
and voted upon separately. An item removed from the Consent Agenda will be placed under
Unfinished and New Business.

Minutes of the January 22, 2019 Committee-of-the-Whole meeting 2-5
Minutes of the January 22, 2019 Council meeting 6-9
Payroll Check Nos. 10790-10818 in the amount of $26,600.72

Payroll Electronic Fund Transfers (EFT) Nos. 60052-60057 in the amount of $93,206.55
Payroll Direct Deposit 1/16/19-1/31/19 in the amount of $112,520.64

Claim Check Nos. 116902-117030 in the amount of $606,666.70

mTmoowm>»

ACTIVE AGENDA - Notice: Items discussed at the 6:00 pm Committee-of-the-Whole meeting of an
urgent or time sensitive nature may be added to the active agenda pursuant to City Council Procedures
Manual Section 3.18(c).

A Resolution No. 2019-4 approving a Business Licensing Service Agreement between 10-20
the City of Grandview and Washington State Department of Revenue

B. 2019 City Board & Commission Appointments 21

C. Resolution No. 2019-5 approving the Police Department Dispatch & Corrections 22-72

Agreement between the City of Grandview and Teamsters Local No. 760 for the
period of January 1, 2019 through December 31, 2021
D. Resolution No. 2019-6 declaring an emergency and authorizing immediate snow
Removal 73-74
UNFINISHED AND NEW BUSINESS
CITY ADMINISTRATOR AND/OR STAFF REPORTS
MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER REPORTS

ADJOURNMENT



2019 PROCLAMATION
GRANDVIEW HIGH SCHOOL
CAREER AND TECHNICAL EDUCATION MONTH

WHEREAS, Fsbruary 2019 has been designated Career and Technical Education Month by
the Association for Career and Technical Education (ACTE); and

WHEREAS, profound economic and technological changes in our society are rapidly
reflected in the structure and nature of work, placing new and additional responsibilities on our
educational system; and

WHEREAS, Career and Technical Education provides Americans with a school-to-careers
connection and is the backbone of a strong, well educated work force, which fosters productivity in
business and industry and contributes to America's leadership in the international marketplace;
and

WHEREAS, Career and Technical Education gives high school students the opportunity to
take advantage of a rigorous program of study that includes applicable academic and technical
courses and experiences to provide students with a pathway, motivating them to graduate and
leave school both college and career ready; and

WHEREAS, Career and Technical Education offers individuals lifelong opportunities to leam
new skills, which provide them with career choices and potential satisfaction; and

WHEREAS, the ever-increasing cooperative efforts of Career and Technical educators,
businesses and industry stimulate the growth and vitality of our local economy and that of the
entire nation by preparing graduates for career fields forecasted to experience the largest and
fastest growth in the next decade.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Council of the City of
Grandview, Washington, proclaim February 2019 as Career and Technical Education in the City of
Grandview and urge all citizens to become familiar with the services and benefits offered by the
Career and Technical Education programs in this community and to support and participate in
these programs to enhance their individual work skills and productivity.

Dated this 12" day of February, 2019

Mayor Gloria Mendoza

y M%\/M%




GRANDVIEW CITY COUNCIL
COMMITTEE-OF-THE-WHOLE MEETING MINUTES
JANUARY 22, 2019

1. CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Gloria Mendoza called the Committee-of-the-Whole meeting to order at 6:00 p.m., in the
Council Chambers at City Hall.

2. ROLL CALL

Present were: Mayor Mendoza and Councilmembers Gay Brewer, Mike Everett, Dennis
McDonald, Bill Moore, Javier Rodriguez and Joan Souders.

Staff present were: City Administrator/Public Works Director Cus Arteaga, City Treasurer Matt
Cordray, WWTP Superintendent Dave Lorenz and City Clerk Anita Palacios. City Attorney
Quinn Plant was absent.

3. PUBLIC COMMENT — None

4. NEW BUSINESS

A. Resolution approving a Business Licensing Service Agreement between
the City of Grandview and Washington State Department of Revenue

City Clerk Palacios explained that the Washington State Legislature enacted Engrossed House
Bill ("EHB") 2005 during the 2017 regular session. EHB 2005 was intended to simplify the
administration of municipal general business licenses for applicants and improve the business
climate. The legislation required actions by those cities with business license requirements.
EHB 2005 required cities with business license regulations to adopt a model business license
ordinance with a minimum threshold and a definition of “engaging in business” by January 1,
2019. Council adopted the model business license Ordinance No. 2018-14 on October 9, 2018.
EHB 2005 also required all cities with business licenses to administer their business licensing
through the Washington State Department of Revenue Business Licensing Service (BLS) by
2027. The BLS currently has over 80 cities/towns that use their system and was in the process
of onboarding 24 additional cities per the 2018-2019 Local Business Licensing Partnership Plan.
The Washington State Department of Revenue Business Licensing Service invited the City of
Grandview to join in the state’s Business Licensing Service partnership in 2019.

Discussion took place.

On motion by Councilmember Moore, second by Councilmember Rodriguez, the C.O.W.
moved a resolution approving a Business Licensing Service Agreement between the City
of Grandview and Washington State Department of Revenue to the February 12, 2019
regular Council meeting for consideration.



Committee-of-the-Whole Meeting Minutes
January 22, 2019
Page 2

B. 2019 City Board & Commission Appointments

Mayor Mendoza presented the following appointments to Councit for confirmation:

Position Term
Community Center Advisory Committee
« Middle School Representative — Sienna Black 12/31/2019
¢ High School Representative — Jaiden Silva 12/31/2019
+ Senior Citizen Representative — Wanda Brewer 12/31/2019
+ American Legion/Auxiliary Representative — Nancy Davidson 12/31/219
+ At-Large Representative — Dave Copeland 12/31/2019
¢ At-Large Representative — Laura Massey 12/31/2019
¢ City Council Representative — Joan Souders 12/31/2019
Benton County Mosquito Control Board — Bill Moore 12/31/2020
Beautification Commission — Mark Drollinger 12/31/2021
Planning Commission — Dale Burgeson 12/31/2023
Civil Service Commission — John Garcia 12/31/2024

Discussion took place.

On motion by Councilmember McDonald, second by Councilmember Everett, the C.O.W.
moved the confirmation of the 2019 City Board and Commission appointments as
recommended by the Mayor to the February 12, 2019 regular Council meeting for
consideration.

C. Complete Streets Award

City Administrator Arteaga explained that the City was notified on January 14, 2019 by the
Washington State Transportation Improvement Board (TIB) that the City was nominated for a
Complete Streets award. Based on the TIB evaluation, which included information provided by
the agency which nominated the City, a range of funds was established for the City to generate
a work plan based off. TIB provided the City with two spreadsheets representing two different
amounts of funds. TIB requested that the City provide a work plan based on either receiving
$100K or $200K. All items listed on the work plan must be completed, not just the ones until the
money was expended. If the award money was not encugh to complete all projects listed, the
City would need to find other funds to complete the list. The City would not be eligible to receive
additional funding until the work plan projects were complete. An increase in project costs
would also not be a valid justification as to why a project was not able to be completed once it
was identified on the work plan. The work plan was prepared with the following TIB criteria:

All work on the work plan must be part of a city, county, or state sireet.

All work must be an improvement for bike, pedestrian, access to transit, or aesthetics

(no street preservation projects).

¢ The intention for this funding was not to supplement other funds, but to build projects
that otherwise would not be built.

» Provide actual projects that would be built with the funding, not plans and visions. A
small amount of the funding could be applied toward modal plan improvements, priority
plans, etc., {not full ADA transition plans), but should be limited.

¢ All funds must be spent within three years from the award date or by March 2022.



Committee-of-the-Whole Meeting Minutes
January 22, 2019
Page 3

Final signed work plans (one for each funding amount) were required to be submitted no later
than February 14th. He presented the City's work plans as follows:

Total Work Plan Complete Streets Funding $200,000

o Dykstra Park Pathway asphalt overlay; 1.5" asphalt overlay of 1.25 miles of pedestrian/
bicycle pathway; funding $75,000; completion 2020

e Install flashing LED stop signs; install TS40 stop flashing LED stop signs at
approximately $2,500 each; funding $45,500; compietion 2020

» |Install flashing pedestrian crosswalk system signs; install TS50 stop flashing LED
pedestrian signs at approximately $2,000 each; funding $45,500; completion 2020

» Remove and replace sidewalk panels near street trees; City funding and forces would
remove street trees as appropriate purchase replacements, and replant trees. Complete
Streets funding would be used to remove concrete sidewalk panels and pour new ones,
funding $12,000, completion 2020
Install covered bench areas with trash receptacles, funding $15,000, completion 2020
Plant all City flower baskets and pots for 2019, replenish flowers in 60 18-inch baskets,
46 flower pots, including supplies, labor, and fertilizer for 2019, funding $7,000,
completion 2019

Total Work Plan Complete Streets Funding $100,000

e Dykstra Park Pathway asphalt overlay; 1.5" asphalt overlay of 1.25 miles of pedestrian/
bicycle pathway; funding $75,000; completion 2020

e Install flashing LED stop signs; install TS40 stop flashing LED stop signs at
approximately $2,500 each; funding $10,000; completion 2020

o |Install flashing pedestrian crosswalk system signs; install TS50 stop flashing LED
pedestrian signs at approximately $2,000 each; funding $10,000; completion 2020

« Install covered bench areas with trash receptacles, funding $5,000, completion 2020

Discussion took place.

On motion by Councilmember Everett, second by Councilmember Moore, the C.O.W.
moved the Complete Streets Funding Work Plans for $100,000 and $200,000 to the
January 22, 2019 regular meeting for consideration.

D. Ordinance prohibiting the distribution of plastic straws and polystyrene-

based food containers and requiring retail establishments to collect a pass-
through charge from customers for the distribution of plastic bags, and

adding a new chapter to the Grandview Municipal Code entitled 8.44-
Carryout Bag and Food Container Requlation

On motion by Councilmember Everett, second by Councilmember Moore, the C.O.W.
tabled an ordinance prohibiting the distribution of plastic straws and polystyrene-based
food containers and requiring retail establishments to collect a pass-through charge
from customers for the distribution of plastic bags, and adding a new chapter to the
Grandview Municipal Code entitled 8.44-Carryout Bag and Food Container Regulation to
the February 12, 2019 C.0.W. meeting for further consideration.



Committee-of-the-Whole Meeting Minutes
January 22, 2019
Page 4

On motion by Councilmember Everett, second by Councilmember Moore, the C.O.W.
moved to reconsider the motion to table an ordinance prohibiting the distribution of
plastic straws and polystyrene-based food containers and requiring retail establishments
to collect a pass-through charge from customers for the distribution of plastic bags, and
adding a new chapter to the Grandview Municipal Code entitled 8.44—Carryout Bag and
Food Container Regulation to the February 12, 2019 C.O.W. meeting for further
consideration.

Councilmember Souders voted in opposition.

Discussion took place regarding scheduling a town hall meeting for public input.

On motion by Councilmember Everett, second by Councilmember Moore, the C.O.W.
tabled an ordinance prohibiting the distribution of plastic straws and polystyrene-based
food containers and requiring retail establishments to collect a pass-through charge
from customers for the distribution of plastic bags, and adding a new chapter to the
Grandview Municipal Code entitled 8.44-Carryout Bag and Food Container Regulation to
the February 26, 2019 C.0.W. meeting for further consideration.

6. OTHER BUSINESS - None

7. ADJOURNMENT

The C.0.W. meeting adjourned at 6:55 p.m.

Mayor Gloria Mendoza Anita Palacios, City Clerk



GRANDVIEW CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
JANUARY 22, 2019

1.  CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Gloria Mendoza called the regular meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers
at City Hall.

Present were: Mayor Mendoza and Councilmembers Gay Brewer, Mike Everett, Dennis
McDonald, Bill Mcore, Javier Rodriguez and Joan Souders.

On motion by Councilmember Moore, second by Councilmember Brewer, Council
excused Councilmember McDonald from the January 8, 2019 meeting.

Staff present were: City Administrator/Public Works Director Cus Arteaga, City Treasurer Matt
Cordray, Fire Chief Pat Mason and City Clerk Anita Palacios. City Attomey Quinn Plant was
absent.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Councilmember Souders led the pledge of allegiance.
3. PRESENTATIONS
A. Grandview Mobilization Group Project — WA State Main Street Program

Carmen Anders on behalf of the Grandview Mobilization Group was scheduled to provide an
update on the Washington State Main Street Program. She was unable to attend and would be
rescheduled for a future meeting.

4. PUBLIC COMMENT — None

5. CONSENT AGENDA

On motion by Councilmember Moore, second by Councilmember Souders, Council
approved the Consent Agenda consisting of the following:

Minutes of the January 8, 2019 Committee-of-the-Whole meeting

Minutes of the January 8, 2019 Council meeting

Payroll Check Nos. 10774-10789 in the amount of $86,145.92

Payroll Electronic Fund Transfers (EFT) Nos. 60044-60048 in the amount of
$81,547.25

Payroll Direct Deposit 1/1/19-1/15/19 in the amount of $103,476.12

Claim Check Nos. 116801-116901 in the amount of $229,299.85

mm oowpe

6. ACTIVE AGENDA




Regular Meeting Minutes
January 22, 2019
Page 2

A Declarations of Interest — Appointment for Vacant City Council Position

Declarations of Interest for appointment to the vacant City Council position were received from
David S. Diaz, Diana R. Jennings, and Joseph (Joe) Jensen. The three candidates were
provided three minutes to address the Council.

Councilmember Souders nominated Diana Jennings for appointment to the vacant Council
position.

Councilmember Brewer nominated David Diaz for appointment to the vacant Council position.
No additional nominations were made.

The following roll call vote was taken by City Clerk Palacios:
Councilmember McDonald voted for Diana Jennings
Councilmember Rodriguez voted for Diana Jennings
Councilmember Souders voted for Diana Jennings
Councilmember Moore voted for David Diaz
Councilmember Brewer voted for David Diaz
Councilmember Everett voted for David Diaz

With a tie vote of the Council, Mayor Mendoza broke the tie by voting for Diana Jennings.
Diana Jennings was officiaily appointed to fill the vacant Council position. She would receive
the Oath of Office at the February 12, 2019 C.0.W. meeting.

B. Resolution No. 2019-3 authorizing the Mayor to sign an Interlocal

Cooperation Agreement between the City of Sunnyside and the City of
Grandview for Emergency Medical Transport Services

This item was previously discussed at the October 9, 2018 C.O.W. meeting, October 22, 2018
Council meeting, November 13, 2018 C.0.W. meeting, November 27, 2018 C.O.W. meeting,
December 11, 2018 C.0.W. meeting and January 9, 2019 C.0.W. meeting.

On motion by Councilmember Everett, second by Councilmember Souders, Council
approved Resolution No. 2019-3 authorizing the Mayor to sign an Interlocal Cooperation
Agreement between the City of Sunnyside and the City of Grandview for Emergency
Medical Transport Services.

Councilmember Brewer abstained from the vote as his spouse was currently the Chair of the
Astria Sunnyside Hospital Board of Directors.

C. Complete Streets Award

This item was previously discussed at January 22, 2019 C.O.W. meeting.

On motion by Councilmember Moore, second by Councilmember Brewer, Council
authorized City Administrator Arteaga to submit the final Work Plan Complete Street
Funding in the amount of $100,000 and the final Work Plan Complete Street Funding in
the amount of $200,000 to the Washington State Transportation Improvement Board for
funding consideration.



Regular Meeting Minutes
January 22, 2019
Page 3

7. UNFINISHED AND NEW BUSINESS — None
8. CITY ADMINISTRATOR AND/OR STAFF REPORTS

SVID Drain_and City Stormwater — West Fifth Street Area — DOE Stormwater Financial
Assistance Program Funding Award — City Administrator Arteaga reported that the City applied
for funding to design three stormwater facilities to manage City stormwater from entering the
SVID underdrain system in the West Fifth Street, Larson Street and Butternut Road area. The
total application funding request was $124,050. The Department of Ecology awarded the City a
grant in the amount of $105,543 and a loan in the amount of $18,507. Normally DOE required a
25% cash match for water quality funding. The 25% match could be reduced to 15% if the City
could show hardship. In this case, the City’s match requirement was reduced to 15%. In lieu of
a cash match of $18,507, DOE offered the City a loan in the amount of the match requirement.
The loan terms for the funding request were 20 years at 2.0% interest. He recommended the
City fund the cash match and not apply for the loan.

Sewer Truck Main Replacement — DOE Funding Award — City Administrator Arteaga reported
that the City applied for construction funding to replace the damaged sanitary sewer trunk main.
The total estimated project cost was $5.2 million. The Department of Ecology awarded the City
a loan in the amount of $3,988,500 and a $100,000 forgivable principal loan. The loan term for
the $3,988,500 funding was 20 years at 2.0% interest. DOE could lower the interest rate after
review of the City's level of hardship. The forgivable principal loan in the amount of $100,000
was a grant which would not need to be repaid. In addition, the City was awarded a $750,000
grant from the Department of Commerce CDBG program for construction funding. The City
Engineers examined the effect the proposed DOE funding of the sewer fruck project would have
on future sewer rates. The sewer rate analysis presented to Council in October 2018 assumed
the project would be funded through a 50% forgivable principal loan (i.e., 50% grant). DOE was
proposing to fund the project with a significantly larger loan with only $100,000 in forgivable
principal. As a result, loan payments would be greater and the impact to sewer rates with the
new debt service would be as follows:

» October 2018 Sewer Rate Analysis — Estimated Loan Amount = $2,200,000
Proposed Rate Increases: 2019=3%; 2020=3%; 2021=2%; 2022=2%; 2023=2%;
2024=2%

e January 2019 Sewer Rate Analysis Update — Estimated Loan Amount = $3,888,500
Proposed Rate Increases: 2019=3%; 2020=3%; 2021=3%; 2022=3%; 2023=3%;
2024=2%

Due to the increase in loan payments, rate increases of 3% per year would be needed from
2021 through 2023 instead of 2% per year. Rates would be approximately 3% higher in 2021
with the newly proposed loan terms, or about $1.03 per month for a typical residential user.

9. MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER REPORTS

Cottage Court Apartment Fire — Councilmember Brewer reported that the Bethany Presbyterian
Church shefltered residents of the Cottage Court apartment complex following a fire at the
apartment complex this weekend.




Regular Meeting Minutes
January 22, 2019
Page 4

Plastic Straw & Bag Ban Ordinance — Councilmember Everett reported that he was interviewed
by KIMA TV regarding the plastic straw and bag ban ordinance.

Homeless Issues — Councilmember Souders reported that she was continuing her efforts with
the homeless issues in Yakima County.

10. ADJOURNMENT

On motion by Councilmember Moore, second by Councilmember Rodriguez, Council
adjourned the regular meeting at 7:55 p.m.

Mayor Gloria Mendoza Anita Palacios, City Clerk



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-4

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GRANDVIEW, WASHINGTON,
APPROVING A BUSINESS LICENSING SERVICE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE
CITY OF GRANDVIEW AND WASHINGTON STATE DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

WHEREAS, the City of Grandview desires to utilize the Washington State
Department of Revenue Business Licensing Services for the purpose of collecting,
processing, and distributing information, licenses, and fees related to the City's licensing
or other regulatory activities in accordance with the terms and provisions of the Business
Licensing Service Agreement; and,

WHEREAS, Chapter 39.34 of the Revised Code of Washington provides for
interlocal cooperation between governmental agencies,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF GRANDVIEW, WASHINGTON, as follows:

The Business Licensing Service Agreement between the City of Grandview and
Washington State Department of Revenue is approved and the Mayor is authorized to
execute said agreement on behalf of the City of Grandview in the form as is attached
hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

PASSED by the CITY COUNCIL and APPROVED by the MAYOR at its regular
meeting on February 12, 2019.

MAYOR
ATTEST:
CITY CLERK
APPROVED AS TO FORM:
CITY ATTORNEY

10



DOR Conlract Number: K1721

BUSINESS LICENSING SERVICES AGREEMENT

|. Parties and Contact Information

This Business Licensing Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into between the parties identified
below:

State of Washington City of Grandview

Department of DOR

Business Licensing Service

(*"Revenue) (“Partner)
Mailing PO Box 47475 207 West Second Street
Address Olympia, WA 98504-7475 Grandview, WA 98930
Delivery 6500 Linderson Way, SW, Ste. 102 207 West Second Street
Address Tumwater, WA 98501 Grandview, WA 98930
Contact Katie Early Anita Palacios
Person Phone: (360) 705-6607 City Clerk

E-mail: KatieE@dor.wa.gov Phone: (509)882-9208

Email: anitap@grandview.wa.us

ll. Purpose and Background

The purpose of this Agreement is to establish the terms under which the Business Licensing Services
(BLS) program of the Department of Revenue will act as Pariner's agent for the purpose of collecting,
processing, and disbursing information, licenses, and fees related to Partner’s licensing or other
regulatory activities, hereafter referred to as Confidential Licensing Information. Partner retains all power
and authority over its business licensing and other regulatory activities except as expressly delegated to
Revenue under this Agreement.

Per RCW 35.090.020 (1) “a city that requires a general business license of any person that engages in
business activities within that city must partner with the department {(Revenue) to have such license
issued, and renewed if the city requires renewal, through the business licensing service in accordance
with chapter 19.02 RCW."

[ll. Effective Date
This Agreement is effective as of (check one}: [] (mm/ddlyyyy).

the date of the last signature B of the parties.

IV. Services Provided by Revenue

Revenue will perform the services identified in this Section IV using best efforts in a manner determined
by Revenue in good faith to be appropriate considering objectives, costs, and effectiveness.

« Distribute and process initial and renewal internet and/or paper-based applications for Partner's
business licensing and/or other regulatory activities.

Page 1 of 10 1 1



DOR Contract Number: K1721

+  Collect and process license fees and licensing information received from applicants and
licensees. Disburse collected fees as directed by Partner.

+ Issue Business License with Partner’s license endorsement as authorized by Partner.

»  Provide routine reports on Partner's business licenses as requested by Partner, which may
include daily lists of new business applications and renewals, fees processed each day, weekly
list of pending accounts, and lists of businesses for which fees have been transferred.

«  Maintain electronic or microfilm images of all paper documents and electronic representations of
electronic filings received by Revenue from applicants and provide copies or certified copies as
requested.

« Maintain a database containing information received from applicants and licensees (the BLS
Database).

* Provide technical assistance to establish and configure appropriate BLS Database access and
secure access for Partner staff.

« Provide initial training to Partner staff in the use of the BLS Database, and ongoing training to
address changes to the BLS database/access protocols or in Pariner staff. Training will occur at
Partner’s location, over the telephone, or online, as agreed upon by the parties.

« Effect reasenable modifications in the BLS system, database, process, or forms to accommodate
Partner’s licensing or other regulatory requirements. Revenue will consult with Partner in
evaluating alternatives and determining the most feasible and timely means of achieving Partner
objectives.

«  Timely notify Partner of other modifications to the BLS system, database, process, or forms,
Including modifications accommedating other BLS partners.

V. Pariner Obligations

«  Timely provide Revenue with all information requested to implement Partner’s participation in the
BLS program.

*  Follow all requirements identified by Revenue as necessary for participation in the BLS program,
including using :

o The Business License Application and other forms and processes established by
Revenue;

o The “Business License” document for proof of licensure under Partner's licensing or
regulatory program.

o The Unified Business Identifier (UBI) number to identify licensees and license accounts in
all communications with Revenue.

+  Obtain and maintain at its own cost, all necessary equipment and online services required at
Partner's business location(s} to support Partner's access into and use of the BLS Database.
End-to-end testing will take place until such time as Revenue is satisfied.

= Ensure Partner Licensing and Information Technology staff are available to respond prompily to
Revenue, Partner staff will be knowledgeable of Pariner operations and/or technology and be
able to assist Revenue staff with process improvements and/or troubleshooting.

* Provide timely advance notice to Revenue of potential changes to Partner business licensing
requirements, fees or processes.

Page 2 of 10 1 2



DOR Contract Number: K1721

+ Upon request by Revenue, provide statistical data associated with the BLS Partner Partnership
Agreement such as Full Time Equivalent (FTE) savings, change in number of Partner licensees,
and change in revenue flow.

V1. Compensation

Services identified in this Agreement are provided by Revenue at no charge with the exception of the
following:

= Pariner shall reimburse Revenue the costs of developing and producing ad hoc informational
reports. Ad hoc reports will be created only if requested by the Pariner and agreed-upon by
Revenue.

* Partner shall reimburse Revenue's expenses for the implementation of changes to the BLS
process, if requested by the Partner and agreed-upon by Revenue.

*  All project coordination costs, including travel-related expenses, shall be absorbed by the
respective parties for their own staff,

VIi. Billing Procedures

Partner will provide and maintain with Revenue its current billing addresses and the personnel, if any, to
whom invoices should be directed. Revenue shall submit invoices to Partner as-needed, but in no event
more frequently than monthly. Partner shall pay all invoices by warrant or account transfer within thirty
(30) calendar days of the invoice issue date. Upon expiration or termination of this Agreement, any claim
for payment not already made shall be submitted within ninety (90) calendar days after the
expiration/termination date or the end of the fiscal year, whichever is earlier.

Vill. Confidentiality and Data Sharing

The parties agree to the confidentiality and data sharing provisions set forth in Exhibit A and incorporated
herein by this reference.

IX. Term and Termination

This agreement is effective until terminated. Either party may terminate this Agreement upon ninety (90)
calendar days' prior written notice to the other party. This agreement may also be amended by mutual
written agreement of both parties.

X. Disputes

The pariies agree to participate in good faith mediation to resolve any disputes that are not otherwise
resolved by agreement, prior to any action in court or by arbitration. At any time, eflher party may initiate
formal mediation by providing written request to the other party seiting forth a brief description of the
dispute and a proposed mediator. [f the parties cannot agree upon a mediator within fifteen (15) calendar
days after receipt of the written request for mediation, the parties shall use a mediation service that
selects the mediator for the parties. Each party shall be responsible for one-half of the mediation fees, if
any, and its own costs and attorneys' fees.

Page 3 of 10

13



DOR Contract Number: K1721

XI. Miscellaneous

A

Governing Law and Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of
Washington. Any action arising out of this Agreement must be commenced in Thurston County,
Washington.

Interpretation. This Agreement shail be interpreted to the extent possible in a manner consistent
with all applicable laws and not strictly for or against either party.

No Waiver. The failure of either party to enforce any term in any one or more instance will not be
construed as a waiver or otherwise affect any future right to insist upon strict perfformance of the
term. No waiver of any term of this Agreement shall be effective unless made in writing and
signed by personnel authorized to bind the party against whom enforcement is sought.

Assignment and Delegation. Either party may assign any right or interest, or delegate any duty or
obligation, arising under this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice to the other party.

Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction,
the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall be given effect to the extent consistent with
applicable law and the fundamental purpose of this Agreement.

Survival. Terms of this Agreement which by their nature would continue beyond termination will
survive termination of this Agreement for any reason, including without limitation, Sections 3
through 7 in Exhibit A.

No third party beneficiaries. This Agreement is for the benefit of the parties and their successors
and may not be enforced by any non-party.

Amendments. No amendment {o this Agreement is enforceable unless made in writing and
signed by personnel authorized to bind the party against whom enforcement is sought.

Merger and integration. This Agreement contains all the terms and conditions agreed upon by
the parties. No other understandings, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter of this
Agreement shall be deemed to exist or to bind any of the parties.

Changes in law. The provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed to change in a manner that is
consistent with any changes to any directly applicable statutory authority, provided that the
change is consistent with the manifest intent of this Agreement and does not confiict with any of
its express provisions. Any such change to this Agreement shall be effective on the effective date
of the change In authority.

Page 4 of 10

14



DOR Contract Number: K1721

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement Is executed effective as of the date specified above.

State of Washington
Department of Revenue
Business Licensing Services

Partner
City of Grandview, WA

Date

Template approved as to form

Mayor Gloria Mendoza

2/12/2019
Date

Approved as to form

On File
Kelly Owings, City Attorney
Assistant Attormey General for Washington State
211212019
Date

Page 5 of 10

15



DOR Contract Number: K1721

EXHIBIT A

CONFIDENTIALITY AND DATA SHARING
AGREEMENT

I. Purpose and Scope

The following provisions establish the terms under which the Department of Revenue (*Revenue”) and
Partner will share confidential data pursuant to the Business Licensing Services Agreement {the

“Agreement”).

IL. Definitions

A

@m

“Confidential Licensing Information” (CLI) has the same meaning as “Licensing Information”
under Revised Code of Washington (RCW) 19.02.115(1){b). CLI is classified as at least Category
3 data under Washington's Standard for Securing Information Technology Assets, Office of the
Chief Information Officer {OCIO) Standard No. 141.10.

*Confidential Tax Information” (CTI) has the same meaning as “Return,” “Tax Information,” and
“Taxpayer [dentity” under RCW 82.32.330(b), (c), & {e}. CTlis classified as at least Category 3
data under Washington’s Standard for Securing Information Technology Assets, OCIO Standard
No. 141.10.

“Confidential” refers to data ciassified as at least Category 3 data under Washington's Standard
for Securing Information Technology Assets, OCIO Standard No. 141.10.

“Portable Devices" refers to small portable computing devices. Examples of portable devices
include, but are not limited to handhelds/PDAs, Ultramobile PCs, flash memory devices (e.g.,
USB flash drives, personal media players), portable hard disks, and laptop/notebock computers.
“Portable Media” refers to small portable digital storage media. Examples of portable media
include, but are not limited to optical media (e.g., CDs, DVDs, Blu-Rays), magnetic media {e.g.,
floppy disks, tape, Zip or Jaz disks), or flash media (e.g., CompactFlash, SD, MMC).

“Data” refers to individual pieces of information.

“Cloud” refers to a non-Partner data center(s) offering infrastructure, operating system platform,
or software services. A more complete definition of *cloud” can be found in the National Institute
of Standards (NIST) Special Publication 800-145.

*Encryption” refers to enciphering data with a NIST-approved algorithm or cryptographic module
using a NIST-approved key length.

“Complex Password” or “Complex Passphrase® refers to a secret phrase, string of characters,
numbers, or symbols used for authentication that is not easily guessable and meets an
established industry guideline for complexity and length, such as NIST Special Publication 800-
118.

lll. Data Classification, Authorized Use, Access, and Disclosure

A,

Ly

Data Classification: Data shared under this Agreement is considered confidential and classified
as at least Category 3 data under Washington's Standard for Securing Information Technology
Assets, OCIO Standard No. 141.10.

Permitted Uses: Business licensing information may be used for official purposes only.

Permitied Access: Business licensing information may be accessed only by Partner's employees
and agents that have a bona fide need to access such information in carrying out their official
duties.

Permitted Disclosure: Business licensing information received under the Agreement must not be
disclosed to non-parties unless the disclosure is:

1) Ordered under any judicial or administrative proceeding; or
2) Otherwise expressly authorized by Revenue in writing.

Page 6 of 10

16



DOR Contract Number: K1721

IV. Confidentiality

Pariner and Revenue each agree to keep confidential and secure from unauthorized use, access, or
disclosure all confidential data received under the Agreement.

A. Ensuring Security: Partner shall establish and implement physical, electronic, and managerial
policies, procedures, and safeguards to ensure that all confidential data exchanged under this
Agreement is secure from unauthorized use, access, or disclosure.

B. Proof of Security. Revenue reserves the right to monitor, audit, or investigate Partner's security
policies, procedures, and safeguards for confidential data. Pariner agrees to provide information
or proof of its security policies, procedures, and safeguards as reasonably requested by
Revenue.

V. Statutory Prohibition Against Disclosure; Confidentiality Agreement

A. Criminal Sanctions. RCW 19.02.115(2) prohibits the disclosure of Confidential Licensing
Information, except as expressly authorized under RCW 19.02.115({3). RCW 82.32.330(2)
prohibits the disclosure of Confidential Tax Information except as expressly authorized under
RCW 82.32.330(3). It is a misdemeanor for any person acquiring Confidential Licensing
Information or Confidential Tax Information under this Agreement to disclose such information in
violation of the disclosure limitations stated in RCW 19.02.115 and RCW 82.32.330. Partner will
require employees with access to Confidential Licensing Information andfor Confidential Tax
information to sign a copy of the confidentiality agreement attached at Exhibit C.

VI. Breach of Confidentiality

In the event of any use, access, or disclosure of confidential data by Partner, or its employees or agents
in material violation of the terms of this Agreement:

A. Pariner shall notify Revenue in writing as soon as practicable, but no later than three working
days, after determining that a violation has occurred.

B. Revenue may immediately terminate this Agreement and require the certified retumn or
destruction of all records containing confidential data received under the Agreement.

VIIl. Data Security

Confidential data provided by Revenue shall be stored in a secure physical location and on Partner-
owned devices with access limited to the least number of staff needed to complete the purpose of this
Agreement.

A. Pariner agrees to store data only on one or more of the following media and protect the data as
described:

1) Woaorkstation hard disk drives

a) Access to the data stored on local workstation hard disk drives will be restricted to
authorized users by requiring logon to the local workstation using a unique user ID and
complex password, passphrase, or other authentication mechanisms which provide equal
or greater security, such as biometrics or smart cards.

b} If the workstation is not located in a secure physical location, hard drive must be
encrypted.

c) Workstations must be maintained with current anti-malware or anti-virus software.

d) Software and operating system security patches on workstations must be kept current.

Page 7 of 10

17



DOR Contract Number: K1721

2} Network servers

3)

4)

3)

a)

b)
¢)
d)

Access to data stored on hard disks mounted on network servers and made available
through shared folders will be restricted to authorized users through the use of access
control lists, which will grant access only after the authorized user has authenticated to
the network using a unique user ID and complex password, passphrase, or other
authentication mechanisms that provide equal or greater security, such as biometrics or
smart cards.

Data on disks mounted to such servers must be located in a secure physical location.
Servers must be maintained with current anti-malware or anti-virus software.

Software and operating system security patches on servers must be kept current.

Backup tapes or backup media

Pariner may archive Revenue data for disaster recovery (DR) or data recovery purposes.
Backup devices, tapes, or media must be kept in a secure physical location.

Backup tapes and media must be encrypted.

When being transported outside of a secure physical location, tapes or media must be
under the physical control of Partner staff with authorization to access the data or under
the physical control of a secure courier contracted by Partner for transportation purposes.

Cloud Storage

a)

b)

I

Revenue will meet cloud and data requirements in Washington's Standard for Securing
Information Technology Assets, QCIO Standard 141.10.
Revenue and Partner will, at a minimum, meet the following requirements:
Encrypt the data at rest and in transit.
Control access to the cloud environment with a unique user ID and complex password,
passphrase, or stronger authentication method such as a physical token or biometrics.
Cloud provider data center(s} and systems must be Service Organization Control
(SOC) 2 Type ll certified.

All data provided by Revenue shall be stored on a secure environment by city staff. The City
will implement these policies to ensure this security:

a) Staff will not store or place any Revenue material on any portable devices or portable
media (USB devices, CD/DVD, etc.).

b) Staff will not email information provided by Revenue to anyone outside of City staff.

c) Staff shall only access Revenue information on a City network computer.

d} Staff will not save any Revenue reports or data on the hard drive of any City
compuler. [t shall only be stored on a City network.

Protection of Data in Transit

Pariner agrees that any retransmission of Revenue data over a network, other than the Partner's
internal business network will be encrypted.

Page 8 of 10

18



DOR Contract Number: K1721

IX. Data Segregation

Revenue data must be segregated or otherwise distinguishable from non-Revenue data. This is to ensure
that if the data is breached through unauthorized access it can be reported to Revenue and when the
data is no longer needed by Partner, all Revenue data can be identified for return or destruction.

X. Data Breach Notification

If Partner or its agents detect a compromise or potential compromise in the data security for Revenue
data such that data may have been accessed or disclosed without proper authorization, Partner shalt give
notice to Revenue within one {1) business day of discovering the compromise or potential compromise,
Partner shall take corrective action as soon as practicable {o eliminate the cause of the breach and shall
be responsible for ensuring that appropriate notice is made to those individuals whose personal
information may have been improperly accessed or disclosed. At a minimum, notification to Revenue will
include:

A. The date and time of the event;

B. A description of the Revenue data involved in the event; and

C. Corrective actions the Partner is taking to prevent further compromise of data.
Xl. Disposition of Data

A. Records furmnished to the Partner in any medium remain the properly of Revenue.

B. Revenue data no longer needed by the Partner must be disposed of following the data
destruction procedures in this Agreement.

C. Upon the destruction of Revenue data, the partner shall complete a Certification of Data
Disposition (attached to this Agreement as Exhibit B), and submit it to the Contract Manager
within 15 days of the date of disposal.

XIl. Data Destruction Proceduras

The following are acceptable destruction methods for various types of media. At least one method
defined under the various types of media must be used to destroy Revenue data for that media type.

A. Opfical discs
1) Incinerate the disc(s); or
2) Shred the discs.

B. Magnetic tape(s)
1) Degauss;
2} Incinerate; or
3) Crosscut shredding

C. Digital files on server or workstation hard drives or similar media
1) For mechanical hard drives, use a “wipe” utility which will overwrite the data at least 3 times
using either random or single character data;
2) For solid state hard drives, use a “secure erase” utility that resets all cells to zero;
3) Degauss sufficiently to ensure that the data cannot be reconstructed; or
4) Physically destroy disk(s)

Page 9 of 10

19



DOR Contract Number: K1721

D. Portable media

)
2)

For mechanical hard drives, use a “wipe” utility which will overwrite the data at least 3times

using either random or single character data;

For solid state hard drives and devices, use a “secure erase” utility that resets all cells to

zero;

Degauss sufficiently to ensure that the data cannot be reconstructed;

Physically destroying disk(s) or devices; or

For SmartPhones and similar smali portable devices use one of the following:

a) If the devices are encrypted and secured with a complex password, the data is
considered destroyed. Before disposal or reissuance of the device, make sure the data
is encrypted and then reset the device to original or new condition; or

b) If a Mobile Device Management (MDM) solution for the device exists, enable the remote
wipe command to destroy the data.

E. Cloud Storage
Use the cloud provider's procedures to permanently delete the files and folders.

ﬁttendt“"

Page 10 of 10 2 O



2019 City Board & Commission Appointments

Mayor Mendoza presented the following appointments to Council for confirmation:

Position Term
Community Center Advisory Committee
¢ Middle School Representative — Sienna Black 12/31/2019
e High School Representative — Jaiden Silva 12/31/2019
e Senior Citizen Representative — Wanda Brewer 12/31/2019
» American Legion/Auxiliary Representative — Nancy Davidson 12/31/2019
o At-Large Representative — Dave Copeland 12/31/2019
o At-Large Representative — Laura Massey 12/31/2019
e City Council Representative — Joan Souders 12/31/2019
Benton County Mosquito Control Board - Bill Moore 12/31/2020
Beautification Commission — Mark Drollinger 12/31/2021
Planning Commission — Dale Burgeson 12/31/2023
Civil Service Commission — John Garcia 12/31/2024

Move to confirm the 2019 City Board and Commission appointments as
recommended by the Mayor.

21



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-5

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GRANDVIEW, WASHINGTON,
APPROVING THE POLICE DEPARTMENT DISPATCH & CORRECTIONS
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF GRANDVIEW AND TEAMSTERS LOCAL NO.
760 FOR THE PERIOD OF JANUARY 1, 2019 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2021

WHEREAS, the City of Grandview and the Teamsters Local No. 760 have been
negotiating a labor contract for the Grandview Police Department Support Staff; and

WHEREAS, the parties have come to an agreement which has been reduced to
writing; and

WHEREAS, the approval of said agreement is in the best interest of the citizens of
the City of Grandview,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF GRANDVIEW, WASHINGTON, as follows:

The Police Department Support Staff Bargaining Unit Agreement by and between
the City of Grandview and the Teamsters Local No. 760 for the period of January 1, 2019
through December 31, 2021 is hereby approved; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor is hereby authorized to sign said
agreement, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

PASSED by the CITY COUNCIL and APPROVED by the MAYOR at its regular
meeting on February 12, 2019.

MAYOR

ATTEST:

CITY CLERK
APPROVED AS TO FORM:

CITY ATTORNEY

22



| GENERAL TEAMSTERS, FOOD PROCESSING EMPLOYEES,
PUBLIC EMPLOYEES, WAREHOUSEMEN and HELPERS

LOCAL UNION NO. 760

Affiliated with
INTERNATIONAL BROTHERHOOD OF TEAMSTERS

Leonard Crouch
Secretary/Treasurer

w GENERAL OFFICE: 1211 WEST LINCOLN = {509) 452-7194 = FAX (509} 452-7354 * YAKIMA, WASHINGTON 98902

AREACFFICES: 1737 N.WENATCHEE AVE, STE.F * (509) 667-7760 * WENATCHEE, WASHINGTON 98801

ST4WESTTHRD - (509) 765-7460 *  MOSES LAKE, WASHINGTON 98837

February 5, 2019
RECEIVED
FEB -5 2019
Cus Arteaga, City Manager '
Grandview Police Department Dispatch & Corrections CiTy oF GRANDVIEW
207 W Second St
Grandview WA 88930

RE: Collective Bargaining Agreement and Subscription Agreement

Dear Cus:

Enclosed are three (3) original documents of the recently ratified agreement signed by Leonard Crouch.
Please have all documents signed and return two (2) original agreements along with the Subscription
Agreement to our office. In order to expedite the Washington Teamsters Welfare Trust change from Plan
Z to Plan A, please scan and email the Subscription Agreement upon signature to
andrea@teamsters760.org. We will submit these forms to the Trust Office for processing. Please return
to our main office in Yakima at 1211 W Lincoln Ave, Yakima WA 98902.

Please feel free to contact me at (509)452-7194 if you have any questions.

Thank you,

A

Andrea Perez
Bookkeeper
Teamsters Local Union 760

cc: file

23



ORIGINAL

By and Between

THE CITY OF GRANDVIEW

POLICE DEPARTMENT AGREEMENT
DISPATCH & CORRECTIONS

And

TEAMSTERS LOCAL No. 760

January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021

24



TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE | - PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT ...ccvvvvvvvvvvevevsssenesesssosseoseossssssesssssss oo oeoeseeeeeoeeeseeeeeeeeoeesseeees 2
ARTICLE 2 - RECOGNITION ..........cvvrvevcrruvvmrmeneresessessssonesesseseesssssssssssessssssesoossosseeeeeeeeseseeeeseeseseeeen e 2
ARTICLE 3 — UNION MEMBERSHIP AND DUES ......oocooetreeoee oo oeeeseeessoss oo eooeoeoeoeeeeeeeeeseeeeeeee e 2
ARTICLE 4 - RIGHTS OF PARTIES .........cccovmmurmmmmmmsessiemeessosseseseeessssss oo eeosseeesesesees oo 3
ARTICLE 5 - DEFINITIONS OF EMPLOYEES ...cccoeeecevetee e seveeeceeeesoosoee oo eoeeeeeeoseeeeeseeseeeseesees oo 4
ARTICLE 6 - SENIORITY ..covvveectemevusmeeencsssneeesssssssssssssaceesssessessesssssssesssesseesssesssosesoeoesoeeeesesseeessesessseeeee s 5
ARTICLE 7 - DEFINED LEAVES .....coutvverermmmmeremsssiossssiossssesssessesssessssesesssessseseseesesmseesemeeseeseesessoeseeeee . 6
ARTICLE 8 - COMPENSATION FOR WITNESS OR JURY DUTY ooooooooooooooeooooooooooooo 9
ARTICLE 9 = VACATIONS...............erreeeetresssosssmnissesssssenesesssessesesessseesssesseseee et esst s 9
ARTICLE 10 - HOLIDAYS .........coooicerteremectmmsssessssnsssosssssesesosssesesssssesess e eee s s 10
ARTICLE 11 - EMPLOYEES® RIGHTS ...ccoovtvuumevuvmsessmssommansseseeeeessess oo oo oo eeess oo I
ARTICLE 12 - HOURS OF WORK ~ OVERTIME .........coooeoeeeoeeeeeoeeoeeeoeoeooeooooooooooooooooooo 15
ARTICLE 13 - CLASSIFICATIONS - WAGE RATES - OTHER PROVISIONS oo 19
ARTICLE 14 - PAY ARRANGEMENTS.......coovvvrrommemreeeesceeseereeesseeeeesesssssessess s oes oo eeeeoeoeeeeeeoe oo 20
ARTICLE 15 - HEALTH CARE BENEFIT PROGRAMS ...t sessssssssnsecnessssseeesensnsns 20
ARTICLE 16 - DISCIPLINE - DISCHARGE - SUSPENSION - WRITTEN WARNING NOTICE -

LOUDERMILL ..ot ceremsessssssssssnssssassesesssssessessseeee s eeessessssessosesseseesesssseessoee e 22
ARTICLE 17 - GRIEVANCE AND ARBITRATION PROCEDURE ........o.oooooooooooooooeoooooooeoooooooooooeeo 25
ARTICLE 18 - STRIKES AND LOCKOUTS...ccvucuuuuuuuasmaoeeereeeeeeeseoeooeeeeseseseessssssooeeoeseeeeeoossesseeeeoeeeee 27
ARTICLE 19 - LIABILITY INSURANCE ...ccouuvuuuumummneseeeeeeeeeeeeseesosessessoessssmsseesoeeeeeeeseeseseeeosoeoeeeeeseo e 27
ARTICLE 20 - UNIFORMS, EQUIPMENT & SAFETY w..oooooovovvoooooeeoeoeoeoeooeoeeeoeoeoeoeoeeoeeooesoeoeooeoooe 27
ARTICLE 21 - GENERAL PROVISIONS AND UNION ACTIVITY ..o 28
ARTICLE 22 - PERSONNEL RECORDS ...cooovvevuucumuummmmmssseeseorreeeemsseesseesssssssessssssssessssseeseeseoesssssseeoeosmo 29
ARTICLE 23 - ENTIRE AGREEMENT ....cocvuuuummmtestiesoseeeeeeeeeeeessseosmessossssessssseesseeoeeeseeeeeeseeesoeeeeeeeeee 30
ARTICLE 24 - SAVINGS CLAUSE ....cccvvtvuveeuemesmssmneeresnsesessssesesesssesessessssesseseeessseeesssesoseeeseesesessseessss e 30
ARTICLE 25 - SUPPLEMENTAL PENSION PLAN .......coomommemeeeooeoe oo oo 30
ARTICLE 26 - VEBA MEDICAL SAVINGS ACCOUNT «....oovvvovovevooeoeoeeoeeeoooeoeoeoeoeeeeeeoeeesoeooeoeoeee 31
ARTICLE 27 - PAID FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE .v.oooooeeoeeeeeeoooooeoooo oo 32
ARTICLE 28 - TERM OF AGREEMENT .....coovvvvovesseseerreeeeeeeemeesreesssssssssssessseoeoeseeeeeeeeeeeseeseeoeeeeeoeeeoeee 32
APPENDIX "A" - CLASSIFICATIONS AND WAGES FOR 2019, 2020, AND 2021 .......covverreereenne. 34
APPENDIX "B" - EDUCATIONAL INCENTIVE PAY .....cmmommeomoeeeeeoooeooooeeooeeoeoeeoeoeoeoeeeeeeeseeeeooeeoes 35
APPENDIX "C" - LONGEVITY PAY .....covvvvrermrrmmasssisisresesesseemesesesssssssssssessesssssssoesesesessesssssseesesesseeseeeenn 36
APPENDIX "D" - SUBSTANCE ABUSE POLICY & TESTING PROCEDURE.....oooooooooeoooo 37
APPENDIX "E" - POST-INCIDENT TRAUMA RESPONSE TO THE EMPLOYEE......ooooooooooooooooon o 46

City of Grandview
Police Support Agreement; January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021 Pagfi



| ARTICLE 1 - PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT |

1.1 This Agreement is made by and between the CITY OF GRANDVIEW, WASHINGTON,
& Municipal Corporation, hereinafter referred to as the "Employer,” and TEAMSTERS
LOCAL NO. 760 hereinafter referred to as the "Union," for the purpose of fixing the
scale of wages, schedule of hours and the general working conditions affecting the
employees.

[ ARTICLE 2 - RECOGNITION |

2.1  The Employer recognizes the Union as the certified collective bargaining representative
for all regular full time and regular part time non uniformed personnel of the City's Police
Department, including clerks, dispatchers, matrons, animal control officer and
Corrections officer, with the exception of the Chief of Police, Assistant Police Chief,
Sergeants, and Patrolman.

| ARTICLE 3 — UNION MEMBERSHIP AND DUES |

3.1  Joining the Union: All employees in this bargaining unit have the right to voluntarily
join the Union. The Union as the Exclusive Bargaining Representative agrees to carry
out its responsibilities under RCW 41.56.080.

3.2 Questions About Union Membership: If an employee has questions about Union

membership, the Employer will remain neutral and direct the employee to discuss this
topic with a Union Staff Representative. The Union’s Staff Representative shall address
the employee’s inquiry as soon as possible.

3.3  Signed Dues Deduction Authorization: Current union members and those who choose to
pay monthly dues via a signed payroll deduction authorization will have their dues
deducted once each month from their pay by the Employer. The signed payroll deduction
authorization may be submitted electronically or by paper writing, and must be presented
to the Employer's Human Resources/Clerk position. The deduction will begin in the
payroll period after submission of the dues deduction authorization card or as soon as
administratively possible if not submitted with enough time to make the next payroll
period. If the employee chooses to discontinue union membership and payment of dues,
said employee must provide notification to the Union and the Employer. Such
discontinuance shall be effective in the next payroll period after notification. The
Employer is not a party to the authorization for payroll deduction as that is between the
employee and the Union.

34  Amounts Deducted: The amounts to be deducted shall be certified to the Employer by
Teamsters Local 760 and the aggregate deductions shall be remitted to Teamsters
Local 760 together with an itemized statement including the employee name, department,
hours worked, monthly base wage and the amount of union dues deducted, after such
deductions are made. If an employee terminates his/her employment on or before the 15%

City of Grandview
Police Support Agreement: January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021 Page



of the month, dues will not be deducted for that month; if the termination is after the 15%,
dues will be deducted.

3.5 New Employee Orientation: These provisions shall be carried out in conformity with
RCW 41.56.037. The Employer agrees to notify the Union Representative in writing of
any new employee orientation date within a reasonable period of time. The Employer
shall provide the name of the employee, corresponding job title, and Department.
A Union official shall be granted up to thirty minutes to provide each new employee a
basic overview of the employees’ rights and responsibilities regarding Union membership
and dues authorizations.

3.6  Hold Harmless and Indemnification: The Union agrees to defend and hold harmless the
Employer from all claims, demands, lawsuits, orders, or judgments, etc., brought or
issued which may arise from the Employer making a good faith effort to administer the
provisions of this Article.

|ARTICLE 4 - RIGHTS OF PARTIES |

4.1 Management Rights: The Union recognizes and agrees that the Employer has core
management rights to manage and direct the affairs of the Employer without bargaining
about the decisions in all its various aspects, including, but not limited to the right to:
manage, direct and supervise all operations of the work force; to assign overtime; to plan,
direct, control and determine all the operations and services of the Employer; to
determine the means, methods, organization and number of personnel by which
operations and services are to be conducted; to establish the qualifications for
employment; to hire, assign, transfer and promote employees; to demote, suspend without
pay, discipline or discharge employees for just cause (Probationary employees without
just cause); layoff employees due to lack of work, lack of funds or reorganization; to
make and enforce reasonable rules and regulations for the Department; to change and/or
eliminate existing methods, equipment and/or facilities; to make any and all decisions
pertaining to budgetary and fiscal matters; and to take whatever action is necessary in the
event of an emergency.

4.2 Union Rights: Except as indicated in Section 4.1 above, the Union does not waive any
right the Union has under applicable State Laws including, but not limited to, the right to
require the Employer to bargain collectively concerning any subject matter held by State
Laws to be mandatory which is not otherwise covered by this Agreement.

4.3  Employee Rights: All employees shall be entitled to and afforded the rights common to
any citizen, regardless of occupational position and as set forth by State law and any
constitutional amendment against self-incrimination. These rights shall include but are
not limited to: The opportunity to contact and consult with an attorney of his own
choosing, or a representative of the Union, before and/or during any interrogation which
could lead to disciplinary action.

City of Grandview
Police Support Agreement: January I, 2019, through December 31, 2021 Page



| ARTICLE 5 - DEFINITIONS OF EMPLOYEES |

5.1  Regular Part-Time Employee: A Regular Part-Time employee is one who has
successfully completed his/her probationary period, (which is twelve (12) calendar
months), and who may work less than eight (8) hours per day or forty (40) hours per
week. Such employee(s) shall be paid hourly in accordance with the applicable job
classification. A regular part-time employee is entitled to a pro-rata share of sick leave,
vacation, and holiday benefits. For each month a regular part-time employee works or is
compensated for at least eighty-five (85) hours, said employee will receive pro-rata sick
leave and vacation benefits in ratio to that of a regular full-time employee. Regular part-
time employees are entitled to medical benefits pursuant to Article 15. Employees who
are hired as regular full-time while serving in a regular part-time capacity shall receive
credit for all time served as a regular part-time employee towards satisfying the twelve
(12) month probationary period.

52  Regular Full-Time Employees: A regular full-time employee is one who has
successfully completed his probationary period and is employed on a full time basis of
forty (40) hours per work week. Nothing in this section shall guarantee a forty (40) hour
work week. A regular full time employee is entitled to accrue the full benefits of the
conditions of this Agreement, and shall be paid in accordance with the salary schedule of
this Agreement,

53  Probationary Employees: An employee shall serve a twelve (12) month probationary
period. A probationary employee shall work under the terms of this Agreement but can
be terminated at any time during the probationary period without just cause and without
any recourse. The Employer will provide a verbal reason at the time of termination.
Such discharge or discipline during the probationary period by the Employer is not
grievable under this Agreement. A probationary employee shall be eligible for benefits
under this Agreement. Examples of state mandated benefits are: Retirement, Worker's
Compensation, Unemployment Compensation, Family Leave, Family Care and F.1.C.A.
This list is for illustrative purposes only and is not all-inclusive. An employee who is
promoted to another classification and who is unsuccessful in satisfactorily completing
the trial period may revert to the previous position, displacing any other employee filling
that position. The probation period may be, by mutual agreement between the Employer
and the Union, extended up to an additional one hundred eighty (180) calendar days if the
employee’s performance warrants such action. The extended probation period may also
be waived by mutual agreement between the Employer and the Union.

5.3.1 In cases of extreme emergency (sudden serious illness or injury to employee or
a family emergency) a probationary employee may use sick leave with approval
of the Police Chief or his designee. If the employee fails to pass probation, he
will have such sick leave used deducted from his final paycheck.

5.4  Employer: Wherever the term Employer is used in this agreement it shall mean the City
Administrator and the Chief or his designee.

City of Grandview
Police Support Agreement: January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021 Pag



| ARTICLE 6 - SENIORITY |

6.1  No employee shall acquire seniority until he has become a regular employee under this
Agreement. Said regular employee is one who has successfully completed his
probationary period as referenced in Article 5, Section 5.3.

6.2  The lists of employees arranged in order of departmental seniority with the Employer
shall be given to the Union annually upon request by the Union. Should more than one
employee have the same hire date, the individuals involved will determine seniority by
use of their Civil Service examination ranking. Any controversy over the seniority
standing of any employee on this list shall be handled as a grievance for settlement.

6.3  Departmental seniority shall be determined by Civil Service classification and shall be in
accordance with the Rules and Regulations of the Grandview Civil Service Commission.

6.4  The seniority of an employee shall be considered broken, all rights forfeited, and there is
no obligation under this Agreement to rehire when the employee:

6.4.1  Voluntarily leaves the service of the Employer.
6.4.2  Isdischarged for just cause.
6.4.3  Islaid off for a period in excess of twelve (12) consecutive calendar months.

6.4.4 Is absent from work because of an illness or injury not to exceed twelve {12)
consecutive calendar months unless extended by the Employer or as provided
by LEOFF.

6.4.5  Fails to return to work upon recall from an indefinite lay-off within seven (7)
calendar days after receipt of written notice from the Employer at his last known
address appearing on the Employer's records.

6.5  There shall be no deduction from continuous service from any time lost which does not
constitute a break in service as set forth herein, except as provided in Article 7.10, Leaves
of Absence.

6.6 Layoff and Recall: In the laying off or recalling employees, there shall be no
discrimination. Skill and ability being approximately equal, the senior employee shall
have preference. "Skill" and "ability" shall be interpreted to mean the skill and ability to
do an available job in a workman-like manner. The Employer shall be the judge of the
skill and ability of his employees, but such judgment must be fairly and reasonably
exercised. Necessary training will be provided to person(s) changing duties /
responsibilities as soon as practicable, but not to exceed six months unless extended by
mutual agreement.

City of Grandview
Police Support Agreement: January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021 Pag



6.6.1 In the event of a layoff, the Employer agrees to give the employees a minimum
of seven (7) calendar days notice and each employee shall give the Employer at
least seven (7) calendar days notice prior to leaving city employment. This
shall not apply to dismissals carried out under Article 16.

6.6.2  Should either party fail to give the seven (7) calendar days notice, that party
shall be subject to the penalty of wages at the contract rate for each day not so
notified to the maximum of seven (7) calendar days, holidays excepted.

| ARTICLE 7 - DEFINED LEAVES |

7.1 Sick Leave: Employees shall accrue hours equal to their shift sick leave for each month
of continuous employment and may accumulate to a limit of one thousand eight hundred
(1800) hours. Regular full-time employees hired prior to 01/01/2007 shall receive fifty
percent (50%) of their accrued sick leave paid out in hours upon death, retirement or
upon leaving employment under good terms after twenty (20) years of service with the
City of Grandview provided they have a minimum of 360 hours in said bank. Regular
full-time employees hired after 01/01/2007 shall receive twenty-five percent (25%) of
their accrued sick leave, paid out in hours upon leaving employment after twenty (20)
years under good terms, retirement or death from the City of Grandview provided they
have a minimum of 360 hours in said bank (retirement as defined by DRS).

7.1.1 Accrual: Employees earn one (1) day of sick leave, commensurate with his/her
scheduled shift, for their first month of employment if they are placed on the
payroll on or before the fifteenth (15th) of the month and actually work
continuously through the rest of that month. Terminating employees do not
receive leave credits for the month in which they terminate unless they actually
work continuously through the fifteenth (15th) of the month.

7.1.2  Regular part-time employees as defined in Article 5, Section 5.1, shall
accumulate sick leave on the basis of forty-six thousandths (.046) times the
regular hours worked per month (exclusive of overtime) not to exceed ninety-
six (96) hours annually. Regular part-time employee's sick leave may
accurnulate to a limit of three hundred sixty (360) hours.

7.2 A deduction of the number of sick leave hours equivalent to the length of shift shall be
made for each full day’s absence due to the following reasons: Non- occupational
personal illness or physical disability or quarantine of an employee by a physician for
non-occupational related disability. Deduction for the use of sick leave shall be the
equivalent of the length of shift to which an employee is assigned. For example, if an
employee is assigned to an 8-hour shift then 8 hours will be deducted, if assigned to a 10-
hour shift then 10 hours will be deducted and/or if assigned to a 12-hour shift then 12
hours will be deducted. The rate of sick leave pay shall be the same per day as that paid
the employee per working day. Should an eligible employee use less than eight (8) hours
of sick leave, such sick leave will be deducted for the actual time away from the job on
an hour-for-hour basis.

City of Grandview
Police Support Agreement: January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021 P38 0



7.3 If unable to report to work because of illness or injury, the employee shall report his
reason for absence to his immediate supervisor or the dispatcher on duty, at least one (1)
hour prior to his scheduled work shift, unless the exigency of the circumstances dictate
otherwise. Failure to provide proper notification may constitute abandonment of duties.
After three (3) days of sick leave usage per calendar year, the Police Chief or his
designee may require a doctor's statement from the employee verifying the employee's
condition which prevented him or her from working. Said doctor's statement if required
shall be paid for by the Employer unless fully covered by medical insurance.

7.3.1  Any employee found to have abused the provisions of a defined leave privilege
by falsification or misrepresentation shall be subject to disciplinary action.

7.4  Emergency Family Leave: When a regular full-time or regular part-time employee
suffers a serious illness/injury of a member of his immediate family, he may, with the
approval of his Department Head, be absent from duty not more than five (5) consecutive
working days on any one (1) occasion. Serious illness/injury shall be defined as that
requiring immediate emergency treatment, or which is potentially incapacitating or life
threatening, including injury/accident or comparable iliness. Such absence shall be
withdrawn from the employee's emergency/sick leave bank. Immediate family shall be
defined as spouse, child, parent, brother, sister, father-in-law, mother-in-law, or other
relative living in the employee's household.

7.5  Bereavement Leave: Bereavement leave may be granted up to forty (40) work hours per
occurrence for immediate family members of the employee (the following is the
definition for immediate family of the employee: Parent, child, spouse, brother, sister,
son-in-law, daughter-in-law, grandparent, grandchild, and equivalent step relatives; up to
24 work hours per occurrence for other extended family members (i.e., aunts, uncles,
nieces, nephews or cousins) where out of town that includes overnight travel is required;
up to 4 hours per occurrence for close friends and acquaintances that may have resided
within normal commute area of the employee residence. Employees may make written
request to their respective department directors asking for exceptions to these guidelines,
which describe the justification for a request to deviate from the bereavement time off.

7.5.1  When an employee is an actual participant in a funeral ceremony, he may be
granted a reasonable time off to perform such duty. Time not worked because
of such absence shall not affect vacation or sick leave accrued.

7.6  Childbirth Leave: A regular full-time or regular part-time employee may be absent for
the birth of a child by the employee's spouse. Under normal circumstances, the absence
will be limited to not more than three (3) consecutive days, with Department Head
approval, and shall be withdrawn from the employee's emergency/sick leave bank.

7.7  Maternity Leave: Disabilities caused or contributed to by pregnancy, miscarriage,

abortion, childbirth and recovery there from, shall apply equally to married and
unmarried women, and are for all job-related purposes, to be considered temporary

City of Grandview
Police Support Agreement: January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021 Pa8 1



disabilities. Accrued sick leave may be used for childbearing or related circumstances as
set forth above. If the period of disability because of childbirth or related circumstances
extends beyond the employee's accrued sick leave, then she may request a leave of
absence as per Article 7, Section 7.10. To be eligible for sick leave because of
childbearing or related circumstances, a female employee shall give her Employer two
(2) weeks’ notice, if possible, of her anticipated date of departure and intention to return.
For purposes of this policy, a four (4) week period of recovery after childbirth or related
circumstances shall be considered as reasonable in the absence of extenuating
circumstances. Female employees cannot categorically be denied the opportunity to
work during the entire period of pregnancy, but may continue working as long as the
individual and her physician concur in her ability to work, and the demands of the job are
satisfied. A doctor's certificate of release may be required upon her return to work. The
employee's return to work shall be governed by R.C.W 49.60 and W.A.C. 162-30-020.

7.8 Worker’s Compensation: All employees of the bargaining unit will be covered by State
Worker's Compensation or some program with equal or better benefits. Any employee
who is eligible for time off because of an on-the-job injury shall be paid sick leave. Any
State Industrial benefit received by the employee shall be endorsed to the Employer.
Upon receipt of this compensation by the Employer, the employee shall be credited with
sick leave on a pro-rata basis of the State Industrial benefit to the original amount of sick
leave taken. Sick leave benefits shall be limited to that amount which the employee has
accumulated.

7.9  Military Leave: A regular employee who is an active member of any organized reserve
of the Armed Forces of the United States, shall be entitled to and granted a military leave
of absence from his/her employment for a period not exceeding twenty-one (21) days
during each year beginning October 1 and ending the following September 30. Such
leave shall be granted in order that the employee shall be able to participate in his/her
mandatory active training duty. Such military leave shall be in addition to any vacation
or sick leave to which the employee might otherwise be entitled, and shall not involve
any loss of efficiency rating, privileges, or pay. Verification of military orders may be
required. The employee shall, in advance, provide an official copy of his/her military
orders, if available.

7.10  Leaves of Absence: A leave of absence is an approved absence, including medical leave
of absence, from employment without pay and without loss of seniority. The Employer
may grant a leave of absence for a period of up to twelve (12) calendar months. Such
leaves shall be in writing with a copy to the Union. Requests for leave renewal will be
granted at the discretion of the Employer. The request must be in writing and must be
submitted sixty- (60) calendar days prior to the effective date. Employees granted a leave
of absence in accordance with this provision shall suffer an adjustment in seniority equal
to the length of leave. Exception: Where the leave is for thirty- (30) calendar days or
less, no adjustment in seniority shall occur.

7.11  The parties jointly and separately agree to follow the mandatory features of the State
Family Care and Family Leave Acts and the Federal Family Leave Act. The parties

City of Grandview
Police Support Agreement: January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021 Pag



specifically understand and agree that permissive aspects of the State Family Care and
Family Leave Acts as well as the Federal Family Leave Act shall not be enforceable, nor
shall the Employer be obliged to conform to such permissive provisions, except as has
been the practice or as otherwise mutually agreed.

J ARTICLE 8 - COMPENSATION FOR WITNESS OR JURY DUTY |

8.1  When a regular employee covered by this Agreement is summoned for Jury Duty or is
subpoenaed as a witness in any matter during or arising out of his employment, in any
municipal, county, state or federal court, he shall advise the Employer upon receipt of
such call or subpoena, and if taken from his work for such service, shall be reimbursed as
provided herein for any loss of wages while actually performing such service. The
employee will sign over to the employer his Jury duty pay excluding those monies for
travel and meal allowances. An employee who is suing the Employer or who is party to
such a suit shall not receive compensation as mentioned above, but shall instead, do so
entirely on his own.

8.1.1  Should an employee report for such service and be excused for the balance of
that day, he shall report as soon as possible to his Employer for the purpose of
working the balance of his special (jury duty or subpoenaed witness) shift. This
special shift shall be consistent with the court appointed time.

8.2  Voting Leave: When an employee's work schedule is such that he or she would not be
able to vote prior to or after his or her normally scheduled working hours, he or she shall
be granted a reasonable time off duty to vote without loss of pay, accrued vacation, or

sick leave.
| ARTICLE 9 - VACATIONS |
9.1  All eligible employees shall accrue and be granted the following vacation benefits
effective January 1, 2019:
VACATION SCHEDULE:
Upon hire......ccooeviviiiiiiiiiiiniiicne e 6.666 hours per month
Seventy-two (72) Months of service.................. 10 hours per month

One hundred twenty (120) Months of Service....... 13.333 hours per month

A five (5) day, eight (8) hour employee shall receive eight (8) hours additional vacation
for each year over twenty (20) years, a four (4) day, ten (10) hour employee shall receive
ten (10) hours additional vacation for each year over twenty (20) years, and a three (3)
day, twelve (12) hour employee shall receive twelve (12) hours additional vacation for
each year over twenty (20} years.

City of Grandview
Police Support Agreement: January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021 Pa8 3



0.2

9.3

9.4

Accrued vacation shall be paid to all employees at their regular rate of pay pursuant to the
above schedule, when the employee is discharged, is laid off, quits, or retires. If a
probationary employee is let go during the probationary period then no payment is due
the employee for his/her accumulated vacation leave.

The vacation period of each qualified employee shall be set with due regard to the desire,
seniority, and preference of employees, consistent with the efficient operation of the
department, as determined by the Chief of Police. Further, the employee's vacation year
will be the same as his employment year.

Vacation leave may be used as accumulated. As of December 31% of each year, no
employee shall be permitted to have an accumulated amount of accrued vacation leave in
excess of two hundred forty (240) hours. On a voluntary basis an employee may request
and receive cash in lieu of up to eighty (80) hours vacation in each calendar year with the
approval of the Department Head, providing that each employee must take a minimum of
two (2) weeks as actual rest/vacation if eligible.

| ARTICLE 10 - HOLIDAYS

10.1  Legal paid holidays to be observed by the City are:
New Year’s Day January 1
Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr., Day Third Monday in January
Presidents’ Day Third Monday in February
Memorial Day Last Monday in May
Independence Day July 4
Labor Day First Monday in September
Veterans’ Day November 11
Thanksgiving Fourth Thursday in November
Day following Thanksgiving Fourth Friday in November
Christmas December 25
Floating Holiday (1) At employee’s choice

10.1.1 In addition, all other holidays recognized by the City will be paid for and
observed as those listed above.

10.2 The "floating" day shall be chosen by mutual agreement of the employee and the
Department Head. If any such holiday falls on a Saturday, it shall be observed on the
preceding Friday. If any such holiday falls on a Sunday, it shall be observed on the
following Monday.

10.3  If any of the above holidays are specified State legal holidays and are also Federal legal
holidays but observed on different dates, only the State legal holidays shall be recognized
as a paid legal holiday.

City of Grandview

Police Support Agreement: January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021

34



10.4 Holidays which occur during vacation or sick leave shall not be charged against such
leave.

10.5 Regular full-time employees shall be credited with eleven (11) shifis of holiday time with
pay effective January 1st, annually. Said time must be taken during the calendar year
earmned or the leave time will lapse December 31st. If an employee leaves employment
for any reason prior to the occurrence of any of the holidays referenced in Section 10.1
above, the employee shall not be paid for the holidays yet to occur. If the employee has
taken holidays prior to their occurrence, and leaves employment for any reason, the
appropriate amount shall be deducted from the employee's last paycheck. Likewise, the
employee will be paid for all holidays, which occur but are not taken prior to leaving.

10.6  All work performed on one of the above-mentioned holidays shall be compensated at one
and one half (1 '2) times the employee’s regular hourly rate excluding the floating
holiday.

| ARTICLE 11 - EMPLOYEES’ RIGHTS |

11.1  This article does not apply to Probationary Employees.

No employee shall, by reason of his’/her employment, be deprived of any rights or
freedoms which are afforded to other citizens of the United States by the United States
Constitution, subject to Policies and Procedures of the Grandview Police Department.
In addition, the Department shall inform me of, and provide me with the protection
afforded me under the doctrines set forth in Garrity v. New Jersey, 386 U.S. 993 (1967),
Gardner v. Broderick, 392 U.S. 273 (1968), and their progeny, should this report
(statement) be sued for other than disciplinary purposes.

The employee will be required to answer any questions involving non-criminal matters
under investigation. Prior to any questioning, the employee will be notified in writing
and acknowledge receipt of the following:

“You are about to be questioned as part of an internal investigation being
conducted by the Grandview Police Department. Today’s date is current
Time is Location of interview .
You are hereby ordered to answer the questions which are put to you which relate
to your conduct and/or job performance and to cooperate with this investigation.
Your failure to cooperate with this investigation can be the subject of disciplinary
action in and of itself, including dismissal. The statements you make or evidence
gained as a result of this required cooperation may be used for administrative
disciplinary purposes but will not be used or introduced into evidence in a
criminal proceeding.”

Section 1 — Bill of Rights. All employees within the bargaining unit shall be entitled to
the protection of what shall hereafter be termed as the “Police Officers Bill of Rights.”

City of Grandview
Police Support Agreement: January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021 Pags 5



The wide ranging powers and duties given to the Department and its members involve
them in all manner of contacts and relationships with the public. Of these contacts come
many questions concerning the actions of members of the force. These questions often
require an immediate investigation by superior officers designated by the Chief of Police.
In an effort to ensure that these investigations are conducted in a manner which is
conducive to good order and discipline, the following guidelines are promulgated.

(a) Notification of formal internal investigation.

1.  Within forty-eight (48) hours of the Department starting a formal
internal investigation, said employee who is the subject of the
complaint shall be informed in writing of the nature of the
investigation, and advised of their rights, unless notification may
prejudice the integrity of the investigation.

2. Any employee who is the subject of the complaint shall be informed in
writing of the nature of the investigation and advised of their rights at
least forty-eight (48) hours before any interview of the employee
begins.

3.  The affected employee may waive the requirement to wait forty-eight
(48) hours. Written notice shall include sufficient information
necessary to reasonably apprise the employee of the allegations of
such complaint.

4. No employee will be interviewed over a subject that the Employer
knows or should know will result in an economic sanction without
providing the notice required by this subsection.

5. This does not preclude the Employer from asking the employee
general questions to see if there is a need for a formal internal
investigation.

(b) Recording Interviews. The Union stipulates that the interview of an
employee during an investigation may be audio recorded and if so a copy
shall be provided to each party. Upon mutual agreement between the City
and the Union representative, including agreement on the placement of the
audio-visual equipment, the interview of an employee may be audio-visually
recorded. The City will provide a copy of the audio-visual recording to the
Union representative immediately or within twelve (12) hours following the
completion of the interview.

1. Any interview of an employee shall be at a reasonable hour, preferably
when the employee is on duty, unless the exigencies of the
investigation dictate otherwise. Where practicable, interviews shall be
scheduled for the day time.

City of Grandview
Police Support Agreement: January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021 Pageg 6



2. The interview shall take place at the Police Station facility, except
where impractical. The employee shall be afforded the opportunity
and facilities to contact and consult privately with an attorney of the
employee’s own choosing and/or a representative of the Union. Said
employee’s attorney and/or Union representative and/or Union
attorney may be present during the interview but shall not participate
in the interrogation except to counsel the employee, provided that the
Union representative, employee attorney, or Union attorney may
participate to the extent permitted by the law.

3. The questioning shall not be overly long and the employee shall be
entitled reasonable intermissions as the employee shall request for
personal necessities, meals, telephone calls, and rest periods.

4. Prior to the disclosure of investigation made in subsection (c) of this
section, the employee shall not be subjected to any offensive language,
nor shall the employee be threatened with dismissal, transfer, or other
disciplinary punishment as a guise to obtain the resignation of the
employee nor shall the employee be intimidated in any manner.
No promises or reward shall be made as an inducement to answer
questions. This does not preclude allowing us, as an employer, to
suggest resignation as an option should circumstances dictate,

5. It shall be unlawful for the City to require any employee covered by
this agreement to take or be subjected to any polygraph or any
polygraph type of examination as the condition of continued or
continuous employment or to avoid any threatened disciplinary action.
By mutual agreement, the parties may stipulate to a polygraph
examination.

(c) Disclosure of Investigation. An employee who is the subject of an
investigation shall be provided written notice if the investigation is not
concluded within sixty (60) calendar days. The notice shall include a
projected completion date and a brief and informative explanation of the
delay. If it is determined that the investigation will take longer than an
additional sixty (60) calendar days, the Chief or his designee shall notify the
Union.  The preceding requirement does not apply to criminal
investigations. No later than five (5) business days (Monday through
Friday) prior to a pre-disciplinary meeting (Loudermill), the employee shall
be advised of the results of the investigation and the recommended
disposition and shall be furnished a complete copy of the investigation
report, provided that the Employer is not required to release statements
made by persons requesting confidentiality where the request was initiated
by such persons, and provided further, such confidential statements may not
be relied upon to form the basis of discipline. The employee and his/her

City of Grandview
Police Support Agreement: January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021 Pagt33 ?



representative shall be allowed up to fourteen (14) calendar days to perform
an independent investigation prior to the pre-disciplinary meeting
(Loudermill), with additional time for good cause, as determined by the
Chief or his designee. The employee and any representative of the
employee are prohibited from contacting any witnesses or complainants in
the investigation until such time as the disclosure of investigation described
in this subsection occurs.

(d) Use of Deadly Force Situations. When an employee, whether on or off
duty, uses deadly force which results in the injury or death of a person, or
discharges a firearm in which no injury occurs, the employee shall not be
required to make a written or recorded statement for forty-eight (48) hours
after the incident except that immediately following the incident the
employee shall verbally report to a superior a brief summary of the incident
and any information necessary to secure evidence, identify witnesses, or
apprehend suspects. The affected employee may waive the requirement to
wait forty-eight (48) hours.

(e) Psychological or Medical Evaluations. When the Chief or his designee
believes that an employee is psychologically or medically unfit to perform
his/her duties, the Employer may require the employee to undergo a
psychological or medical examination in accordance with current standards
established by the Washington Association of Sheriffs and Police Chiefs, the
International Association Chiefs of Police, the American with Disabilities
Act, and other applicable State or Federal laws. Consultations with the
City’s Employee Assistance Program are not considered psychological or
medical examinations. If the first psychological and/or medical examination
by the Employer’s medical provider results in a finding of unfit for duty, the
Employer has the right to immediately place the employee on administrative
leave pending further proceedings. If the Union and/or employee desire that
a second psychological and/or medical examination be conducted by a
medical provider who is qualified to conduct such examinations then the
Union and employee shall notify the Employer within five (5) calendar days
of release of the results of the first examination and shall arrange for the
second examination to be conducted and concluded within ten (10) calendar
days of release of the first examination results. The second examination
shall be at the expense of the Union and/or employee. If the second
examination disagrees with the results of the first examination (one indicates
unfit and the other fit for duty) then a third examination will be performed
by a medical provider who is qualified to conduct such examinations and
who is selected by mutual agreement between the Employer and the Union.
The expenses of such third examination shall be shared equally by the
Employer and the Union. The third examination shall be conducted and
concluded within ten (10} calendar days of the release of the second
examination results. The outcome of the third examination concurring with
either the first examination results or the second examination results shail be

City of Grandview
Police Support Agreement: January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021 Page



final and binding on the Employer, the Union and the employee. The
examinations process and the results shall not be subject to the grievance
procedures. If the employee is found to be unfit for duty, then the employee
shall be terminated unless treatment can rehabilitate the employee to fit for
duty status within six (6) months of the last examination results except
where such treatment timing (6 months) would create an undue hardship on
the City in which case the employee shall be terminated.

| ARTICLE 12 - HOURS OF WORK — OVERTIME |

12.1  For bargaining unit employees except corrections officers addressed in Section 12.2
below, the normal work week shall consist of forty (40) hours worked for each full time
employee. The Employer has the right to schedule the number of hours an employee
shall work on any work day within a work period. The Employer may schedule an
employee to work days of eight (8), ten (10, eleven (11), twelve (12), or thirteen and one-
third (13 1/3) hours in length within the work period. The Employer retains the authority
to schedule employees’ work weeks in such a manner that they may be comprised of
work days of different lengths. The Employer reserves the right to adjust an employee’s
work schedule.

12.1.1 'When an employee works a shift that is twelve (12) hours or thirteen and one-
third (13 1/3) hours it shall consist of the respective number of hours of work
scheduled for the work shift including a half (1/2) an hour paid lunch and three
(3) fifteen (15) minute rest periods. The above schedule may be revised to cover
bona fide emergencies. Any such revised schedule will be temporary and will
be retumned to the normal schedule upon resolution of the emergency(s) or
sooner if agreed to by the parties. An employee may be changed to an eight (8)
hour shift for training, provided said employee will not be forced to use
unscheduled accrued personal leave.

12.1.2  For bargaining unit employees employed as dispatchers, the Employer reserves
the right to implement a schedule where the work week begins and ends in the
middle of a work day. Under such a schedule, the work week shall begin on
Monday at 0000 hours and end the following Monday at 0000 hours. When the
Employer implements the schedule described in this paragraph, the shift (i.e,
day shift or graveyard shift) worked by a dispatcher group (i.e., red group or
blue group) other than lead dispatchers shall only rotate at the conclusion of the
graveyard shift that begin on a Sunday that was worked by employees from the
other dispatchers group (e.g., a shift change for the red group can only occur at
the conclusion of a Sunday graveyard shift worked by a dispatcher from the
blue group). When the Employer implements the schedule described in this
paragraph, such schedule shall be implemented during a Sunday graveyard shift
at 0000 hours. Shift changes for the dispatcher group on duty when the
schedule is implemented shall occur on the Monday immediately following the
conclusion of the seventh (7%) work week following implementation of the
schedule and at the conclusion of every seventh (7%") work week thereafter.

City of Grandview
Police Support Agreement: January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021 Pag3 9



Shift changes for the dispatcher group that is off duty when the schedule is
implemented shall occur on the Monday immediately following the conclusion
of the sixth (6%) work week following implementation of the schedule and at the
conclusion of every sixth (6") work week thereafter. The Employer and the
Union agree that when the Employer implements the schedule described in this
paragraph, there shall be no overtime built into the schedule, nor overtime
created as a result of shift changes. The Employer and the Union agree that
when the Employer implements this schedule, the Employer is not obligated to
continue such schedule. The Employer retains the right to alter or modify the
work schedule of bargaining unit members employed as dispatchers as it deems
appropriate to meet the Employer’s needs.

The Union and bargaining unit employees shall cooperate fully with the
Employers to make sure the schedules and shift changes do not create overtime.
The Employer has the right to adjust the schedule if such a situation arises so as
to avoid overtime. The Union and bargaining unit employees shall follow the
Employer’s directives as to payroll records and processing to conform to the
schedule and overtime controls. The City Administrator reserves the right to
implement a different schedule and/or to contract out part, none, or all
dispatcher services if the City Administrator deems there is too much overtime
being incurred.

The following is an example of the work schedule authorized by this section
applied to the month of June 2017. The color of letters of the name of each shift
(i.e., DAY SHIFT or GRAVEYARD SHIFT) indicates whether the shift will be
worked by a dispatcher in the red group or blue group.

City of Grandview
Police Support Agreement: January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021 Pag4 0



| Wed

June 2017

_ i | R 1 2 3
L e ; DAY SHIFT DAY SHIFT
1 ; GAM-7:20 PM (13 [GAM-7:20PM (13
. : HRS 20 MIN) HRS 20 MIN)
7|
| o e LEAD OFF LEAD OFF
GRAVEYARD SHIFT [GRAVEYARD SHIFT
] 7PM-7AM (12 HRS)  [7PM - 7AM {12 HRS}
4 5 6 7 8 9 10
DAY SHIFT DAY SHIFT AY SHIFT DAY SHIFT DAY SHIFT DAY SHIFT DAY SHIFT
6AM-7:20PM (13 OFF M-7:20PM (13 6AM-7.20PM (13 GAM-7:20PM (13 GAM-7:20PM (13 GAM-7:20PM (13
HRS 20 MIN) RS 20 MIN) HRS 20 MIN) HRS 20 MIN) HRS 20 MIN} HRS 20 MIN)
LEAD CFF LEAD D ILEAD LEAD LEAD OFF LEAD OFF
TAM-TPM (12HRS) |6BAM-4PM (10HRS) |6AM-PM (10HRS) |6AM-2PM (BHRS)
GRAVEYARD SHIFT
7PM - 7AM (12HRS) |GRAVEYARD SHIFT JGRAVEYARD SHIFT [GRAVEYARD SHIFT [GRAVEYARD SHIFT [GRAVEYARD SHIFT |GRAVEYARD SHIFT
" TPM-GAM (11 HRS) [TPM-6AM{11HRS) |7PM-GAM (11 HRS) [7PM-6AM {11 HRS) |7PM-TAM (12HRS) [fPM-7AM (12 HRS)
15 HRS ONE WEEK
[7 HRS ON NXT
[WEEK
11 12 13 14 15 16 17
DAY SHIFT DAY SHIFT DAY SHIFT DAY SHIFT DAY SHIFT DAY SHIFT DAY SHIFT
GAM-7:20PM (13HRS JOFF GAM-7:20PM (13 BAM-7:20PM{13 HRS [6AM-7:20PM {13 GAM-7:20PM {13 |6AM-7.20PM (13
20 MIN) HRS 20 MIN) 20 MIN} HRS 20 MIN) HRS 20 MIN} HRS 20 MIN)
LEAD OFF LEAD 7AM-7PM  [LEADGAM-4PM  [LEADGAMAPM  [LEADGAM-2PM  |LEAD OFF LEAD OFF
{12 HRS) (10 HRS) (10 HRS) (8 HRS)
(GRAVEYARD SHIFT
7PM- 7AM (12HRS)" [GRAVEYARD SHIFT [GRAVEYARD SHIFT |GRAVEYARD SHIFT [GRAVEYARD SHIFT [GRAVEYARD SHIFT [GRAVEYARD SHIFT
5HRS ONEWEEK  [7PM-6AM {11 HRS) [7TPM-BAM (11 HRS) |7PM-6AM (11 HRS) [TPM-6AM(11HRS) [FPM-TAM (12HRS) [FPM-7AM (12 HRS)
7 HRS ON NXT
WEEK
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
DAY SHIFT DAY SHIFT DAY SHIFT DAY SHIFT DAY SHIFT DAY SHIFT DAY SHIFT
GAM-7:20PM (13 OFF GAM-7:20PM (13 [6AM-T:20PM (13 AM-7.20PM (13 GAM-7.20PM (13 6AM-7.20PM (13
HRS 20 MIN} HRS 20 MIN) HRS 20 MIN) [HRS 20 MIN) HRS 20 MIN) HRS 20 MIN)
LEAD OFF LEAD LEAD LEAD LEAD LEAD OFF LEAD OFF
7AM-7PM (12HRS) [6AM-4PM (10HRS) |6AMAPM (10HRS) |GAM-2PM (BHRS)
GRAVEYARD SHIFT
7PM - 7AM (12HRS) |GRAVEYARD SHIFT |GRAVEYARD SHIFT |GRAVEYARD SHIFT |GRAVEYARD SHIFT [GRAVEYARD SHIFT [GRAVEYARD SHIFT
y 7PM-EAM (11 HRS) |7TPM-BAM (11HRS) | 7PMSAM (11 HRS) [FPM-6AM {11 HRS) [TPM-7AM(12HRS} [7PM-7AM (12 HRS)
5 HRS ONE WEEK
7 HRS ON NXT
|WEEK
25 26 27 28 29 30 Notes:
DAY SHIFT DAY SHIFT DAY SHIFT DAY SHIFT DAY SHIFT DAY SHIFT [
BGAM-7:20PM (13HRS [OFF GAM-7:20PM{13  [6AM7:20PM (13 [BAM-720PM (13  |BAM-7:20PM (13
20 MIN) HRS 20 MIN) HRS 20 MIN) HRS 20 MIN) HRS 20 MIN)
LEAD OFF
LEAD 7AM-7PM LEAD 6AM-4PM LEAD GAM4APM LEAD 6AM-2PM LEAD OFF
(GRAVEYARD SHIFT [{12HRS) {10 HRS) (10 HRS) {8 HRS)
7PM-7AM (12HRS)"
5 HRS ONE WEEK  |GRAVEYARD SHIFT [GRAVEYARD SHIFT [GRAVEYARD SHIFT [GRAVEYARD SHIFT [GRAVEYARD SHIFT
7HRSONNXT  |7PMBAM{11HRS) [TPM6AM(11HRS) |7PMEAM (11HRS) [TPM-AM(11HRS) [TPM-7AM (12 HRS)
[WEEK £
City of Grandview
Police Support Agreement: January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021 Pa



Under this schedule, the first five (5) hours of an employee working the
graveyard shift on Sunday will be attributed to the expiring work week/work
period and the last seven (7) hours will be attributed to the new work
week/work period. The Monday day shift will be covered by the lead
dispatcher.

12.1.3 Work shifts will be scheduled consecutively except for administrative
scheduling needs as determined by management, emergencies and shift
rotations.

12.2  Hours of Work for Corrections Officers: This section shall apply to members of the
bargaining unit who are corrections officers performing only corrections duties. The
Union and Employer acknowledge that the majority and perhaps all of corrections work
has been contracted out to other entities. If there are corrections officers, they are hereby
designated by the Employer as FLSA 7(k) (29 U.S.C. § 207(k)) employees. The work
period for these employees shall consist of fourteen (14) consecutive days. An employee
will be eligible for overtime for work performed in excess of eighty-six (36) hours in any
work period. For payroll purposes, the work period begins at 8:00 a.m. and ends at 8:00
a.m. after fourteen (14) consecutive days.

12.2.1  Alternative Hours of Work for Corrections Officers: An alternative to
Section 12.2 above, as determined by the Employer, is that members of the
bargaining unit who are employed as corrections officers are hereby designated
by the Employer as FLSA 7(k} (29 U.S.C. § 207(k)) employees. The work
period for these employees shall consist of twenty-eight (28) consecutive days.
An employee will be eligible for overtime for work performed in excess of one
hundred and seventy-one (171) hours in any work period. For payroll purposes,
the work period begins at 8:00 am. and ends at 8 a.m. after 28 consecutive
days.

12.3  Each work shift shall include a thirty (30) minute meal period as near to the middle of the
shift as possible and two (2) fifteen (15) minute rest periods, or three (3) fifteen minute
rest periods if working twelve (12) hour shifts, to be taken at the employee's discretion so
as not to interfere with normal business of the department. When two (2) or more
commissioned patrol officers are on duty at the same time, the dispatcher on duty at that
time will be entitled to a thirty (30) minute uninterrupted meal break upon advising the
supervisor on duty. While on the meal break, the dispatcher should be within city limits
in close proximity to the dispatch area with a radio and able to return to the station in a
timely fashion in the event an emergency arises. Employees may be required to respond
to emergency situations during meal and rest periods.

12.4  The shifts to which employees are assigned shall be stated on a departmental work
schedule. Should it be necessary to change shifts as determined by the Chief, the Chief
will give notice of such change to the employees as far in advance as is reasonably
practical. Employees may exchange shifts when unforeseen circumstances arise provided

City of Grandview
Police Support Agreement: January I, 2019, through December 31, 2021 Pa



they first request and receive approval in writing from the Chief of Police or his designee.
Such exchange in shifts shall not, by itself, constitute a basis for entitlement to overtime
compensation.

12.5 Overtime: Excluding corrections officers, employees covered by this Agreement shall
be paid one and one-half (1 & 1/2) times their regular straight time hourly rate for all
compensated hours in excess of forty (40) hours in a work period. Employees employed
as corrections officers shall be paid one and one-half (1 & 1/2) times their regular straight
time hourly rate for all compensated hours in excess of eight-six (86) in a fourteen (14)
day work period, as defined above in Section 12.2, Employees employed as corrections
officers shall be paid one and one-half (1 & 1/2) times their regular straight time hourly
rate for all compensated hours in excess of one hundred and seventy-one (171) in a
twenty-eight (28) day work period, as defined above in Section 12.2.1.

12.5.1  All overtime shall be paid for in increments of one-quarter hour (15 minutes)
with the major portion of 15 minutes being paid as 15 minutes.

12.5.2  There shall be no pyramiding of overtime.

12.6  Callback: An employee who is required to return to work less than two (2) hours prior
to the beginning of a regularly assigned shift shall receive one and one-half (1 & 1/2)
times his regular straight-time hourly rate of pay for such actual time as occurs prior to
his regular shift. Off duty employees who are called to appear at any scheduled court
trials in the Grandview Municipal Court or at any other court proceedings or Department
of Licensing proceedings to which the off duty employee has been subpoenaed in their
official capacity, shall be compensated at regular time and one-half (1 & 1/2) for a
minimum of two (2) hours. Overtime work performed continuous with the end of an
employee's regularly assigned work schedule shall not be subject to the two (2) hour
minimum.

12.6.1 Callout: An employee who is required to return to work afier having
completed his regular shift, and having left the premises, shall be paid a
minimum of two (2) hours of pay at the overtime rate.

12.7 Compensatory Time: Upon approval of the Department Director or Department
Directors appointed representative, an employee may choose to receive compensatory
time at one and one-half hours for each hour worked in excess of forty hours per week.
The maximum accrual of compensatory time shall not exceed 40 hours at any given time.
The accumulation and use of compensatory time by an employee is documented on the
employee’s time sheet.

MRTICLE 13 - CLASSIFICATIONS - WAGE RATES - OTHER PROVISIONS |

13.1  See attached Appendix A - Classifications and Wage Rates

13.2  See attached Appendix B - Education Incentive Pay

City of Grandview
Police Support Agreement: January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021 Pa



13.3  See attached Appendix C - Longevity Pay
13.4  See attached Appendix D - Substance Abuse Policy & Testing Procedure
13.5 See attached Appendix E - Post-Incident Trauma Response to the Employee

The above-mentioned Appendix is attached hereto and incorporated by this reference.

| ARTICLE 14 - PAY ARRANGEMENTS |

14.1  All employees shall be paid all monies earned by the end of their regular shift, no later
than the last working day prior to the first (1) and sixteenth (16'") of each month for
preceding semi-monthly payroll period. There shall be no deductions other than required
by law or authorized in writing by the Employee.

14.2 Each employee shall be entitled to an itemized statement of earnings and deductions,
specifying hours paid and other compensation payable, as well as any and all deductions
from gross wages for the pay period.

14.3 Upon separation from employment for any reason, all monies due and owing to the
employee shall be paid on the next pay day following the pay period in which the
separation occurs.

144  Upon thirty (30) days written notice to the Union, the City retains the right to alter the
above schedule of pay days.

| ARTICLE 15 - HEALTH CARE BENEFIT PROGRAMS I

15.1 Effective January 1, 2019, subject to a lag period as a result of the Teamster Trust
requirements, the employees shall move from Plan Z to the Washington Teamsters
Welfare Trust Health and Welfare Medical Plan A for medical insurance. Effective
Janvary 1, 2019, the Employer will pay ninety percent (90%) of the premium, and
employees will pay ten percent (10%) of the premium by payroll deduction towards the
Plan A medical insurance. Effective beginning January 1, 2019, there shall be no $700
VEBA contribution by the Employer. In the transition from Plan Z to Plan A due to the
Teamster Trust requirement of a lag period, the coverage for employees shall be under
Plan Z for January to the end of February, 2019. Beginning March 1, 2019, Plan A
coverage will commence.

15.2  Effective for 2019, 2020, and 2021, the City of Grandview will pay towards the current
AWC Group Dental Plan E an amount sufficient to pay the premiums for employee and
dependents coverage for the current plan.

15.3  Effective for 2019, 2020, and 2021, the City of Grandview will pay towards the current
Group Vision Plan an amount sufficient to pay the premiums for employee and

City of Grandview
Police Support Agreement: January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021 Pa



dependents coverage for the current plan.

15.4  Effective for 2019, 2020, and 2021, the City of Grandview will pay the premium towards
the current Group Life Insurance Plan to provide $25,000 in life insurance per employee.
An employee will have the option to increase this coverage for employee, spouse, and
family, at the employee's sole expense.

15.5 Qualification for medical insurance, dental insurance, vision insurance, and life insurance
for full time and regular part time employees shall be subject to the eligibility
requirements of the relevant insurance providers.

(a) Eligibility threshold for Washington Teamsters Welfare Trust medical insurance
requiring an employer contribution shall be for each Regular Full-time employee
who has eighty (80) compensable hours in the previous month. Compensable hours
include, but are not limited to regular hours, overtime, vacation, sick, holiday, and
severance pay.

(b) Regular Part-time employees satisfying the eighty (80) compensable hours’
eligibility threshold for Washington Teamsters Welfare Trust in the previous month
shall be eligible for medical insurance coverage contributions only.

15.6 In the event of notice from any of the insurance providers that the insurance premiums,
plans, programs, and coverage are being changed then notification will be provided
immediately in writing to the other party. If the changes involve a Union plan then the
Union shall immediately notify the employer of the changes. If the changes involve a
City plan then the City shall immediately notify the Union of the changes. The parties
shall discuss the changes within a sixty (60) calendar day pericd from the date of written
notification. If the discussions result in a mutually acceptable solution within the sixty
(60) calendar day period then that solution will be implemented. If the discussions do not
result in a mutually acceptable solution within the sixty (60) calendar day window, then
the Employer has the right to implement the change as determined to be necessary by
management.

15.7 Each employee has been provided a copy of this labor agreement, and a current copy of
the benefit booklet for each health care coverage named above. It is the responsibility of
the employee to read these health care booklets, to determine when he will become
eligible for each benefit. If an employee misplaces any of the booklets, he should contact
the City Clerk's office for a replacement copy.

15.8 In no event shall the Employer be responsible for directly paying any of the benefits,
coverages and costs associated with the applicable health insurance plans. In no event
shall any claims, complaints, lawsuits or other allegations pertaining to disputed
coverages and claims be subject to the grievance procedures in this Agreement.

15.9 Regular part-time employees who meet the eligibility requirements for medical coverage
pursuant to Section 15.5 may elect to purchase Dental and/or Vision (employee only)

City of Grandview
Police Support Agreement: January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021 Pa



coverage pursuant to AWC Trust rules. If such election is made by the employee(s), the
premium(s) for the coverage will be deducted on a monthly basis from the employee's
wages.

15.10 ACA Cadillac Protection: If the current Teamster insurance plans and premiums create
a "Cadillac tax" liability January 1, 2020, or later, the Employer will provide at least
thirty (30) calendar days’ written notice to the Teamsters Representative of such
determination. However, if the Employer has more time than thirty (30) calendar days
from the date of the determination to provide notice to the Teamster Representative then
such notice as is practicable will be provided. For example, if there is sixty (60) calendar
days from the determination, the Employer will provide sixty (60) calendar days’ written
notice. The purpose of this timeframe is to provide the parties an opportunity to bargain
about the effects of such determination and the changes the Employer needs to make to
avoid the imposition of "Cadillac" taxes, fees, assessments, liability, etc. If the parties
are unable to reach an agreement about the effects of bargaining during the sixty (60)
calendar days or more, depending on the notice as discussed above, then the Employer
has the right to implement the changes management believes are necessary to eliminate
the "Cadillac tax" liability of the Employer and of the insurance providers. The parties
will continue bargaining the effects after the Employer implements its changes, then the
parties will proceed with effects’ bargaining until impasse. If the parties reach
agreement, then said agreement shall supplement the Agreement provisions of this
Article.

ARTICLE 16 - DISCIPLINE - DISCHARGE - SUSPENSION - WRITTEN WARNING
NOTICE - LOUDERMILL

16.1 The Employer may discipline an employee subject to just cause. Examples of just cause
for discipline are as follows:

(a) Consuming intoxicants on duty; illegal use or possession of a controlled substance
at any time; using prescribed medication on duty which affects the employee’s
ability to perform his/her duties.

(b) Reporting for duty with the presence of alcohol, controlled substances and/or
prescribed medication in the officer’s bodily system (blood, breath and/or urine)
which affects the officer's ability to perform his/her duties.

(c) Disobedience to a lawful order given by a superior officer.

(d) Incompetence.

(e) Deliberate destruction of the Police Department's or another employee's property.

(f) Neglect of duty.

City of Grandview
Police Support Agreement: January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021 Pa



(g) Refusal to comply with any lawful departmental rule; provided that such rule shall
be posted in each department where it may be read by all employees.

(h) Sleeping on duty; excluding pre-approved “stand-down time.” Form/memo of such
is to be forwarded to the Chief.

(i) Dishonesty.
(i) Giving or taking of bribes.
(k) Failure to report for duty without authorization from his/her immediate supervisor.

(1) Excessive absenteeism which has no lawful reason and/or which is not subject fo
protected status leave.

{(m) Borrowing or taking tools, equipment, or other property of the Police Department
for private or personal use.

(n} Abuse of sick leave by falsification and/or misrepresentation.
(o) Criminal conviction, or alternative disposition as a result of a criminal case
involving moral turpitude (bearing upon credibility and/or integrity), or affecting

qualifications to perform duties.

(p) Those items included in the Grandview Civil Service rules and regulations and the
Grandview Police Department Policies and Procedures Manual.

16.2  Disciplinary action or measures shall include only the following:
(a) Written counseling/coaching statement;
(b) Verbal reprimand, which may be documented in writing;
(c) Written reprimand;
(d) Suspension without pay;
() Demotion (where applicable);
(f) Discharge (termination).
The Employer has the right to administer a combination of the above disciplinary

action(s) such as a suspension without pay and PIP or demotion and PIP or demotion, PIP
and last chance agreement, etc.

City of Grandview
Police Support Agreement: January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021 Pa



16.3 The parties agree that progressive and escalating levels of discipline are preferable for
minor violations of work rules in order to allow an employee notice of misconduct and to
allow the Employer to document prior disciplinary matters. The parties agree that for
serious violations, progressive and escalating levels of discipline are not necessary and
the Employer can proceed directly to the higher levels of disciplinary action up to and
including discharge regardless of whether the employee has any prior disciplinary actions
in his/her file. When progressive and escalating levels of discipline for minor violations
is being considered, the level or degree of discipline imposed shall be appropriately based
on an employee's prior record of service, length of service, severity of offenses and prior
record of discipline; the order in which these criteria appear is not indicative of their
priority. Subject to the tenets of just cause, all previous disciplinary actions in an
employee's file may be evaluated and considered in a disciplinary action. The Employer
will endeavor to notify the employee of a complaint or investigation against him/her
within fourteen (14) days of the alleged violations.

16.4 Administrative Leave. When the Employer/Police Chief has reasonable belief that
circumstances are such that retention of the employee will likely result in disruption of
Employer services, damage to or loss of Employer property or be injurious to the
employee, fellow employees or the services provided by the Employer, the
Employer/Police Chief has the right to place the employee on administrative leave with
pay immediately, pending an internal affairs investigation and possible discipline.
In such cases, the suspected reasons against the employee shall be made available to the
employee and the Union, in writing, by the Employer when the employee is placed on
administrative leave with pay.

16.5 The employee shall have the right to inspect his/her personnel file. The employee shall
have the right to add their written comments to materials added to the personnel file.

16.6  Any written reprimand in an employee personnel file will be removed from the file after
three (3) years if there has been no recurrence of the type or kind of conduct giving rise to
the reprimand. If there is a recurrence, the written reprimand will remain in the file for
three (3) years from the date of the recurrence. Suspensions without pay, demotions, last
chance agreements, yearly evaluations and discharge shall remain permanently in the
employee’s personnel file.

16.7 Suspension without Pay, Demotion and Discharge: The Employer has the right to
suspend without pay, demote or discharge/terminate an employee for cause. Prior to
implementing disciplinary action, the Employer will present to the Union and employee a
letter/written notice of pre-disciplinary action meeting which shall contain a description
of the violation(s), misconduct(s) and/or performance problems as well as the
departmental policies, procedures, rules, regulations, etc., being relied upon by the
Employer. The written notice will indicate that the employee has the right to have their
Union representative present at the pre-disciplinary action meeting. The notice will set
forth the date, time and location of the pre-disciplinary action meeting.

City of Grandview
Police Support Agreement: January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021 Pa



16.8 The purpose of the pre-disciplinary action meeting is to provide the employee with an
opportunity to explain their side of the facts, misconducts, violations and/or performance
problems before the Employer implements disciplinary action. The Employer will issue
a written decision regarding disciplinary action(s) will be implemented within a
reasonable time after the pre-disciplinary action meeting. The timing of issuance of the
written decision is dependent on the complexity of the facts, investigations, and whether
the Employer believes further investigation is necessary.

16.9 Notification and Representation: The limitations relating to notification of disciplinary
action are only for employee notification purposes and shall not adversely affect the
validity of disciplinary action taken by the Employer. The duration of the investigation
shall not adversely affect the validity of the charges, findings and resultant discipline.

| ARTICLE 17 - GRIEVANCE AND ARBITRATION PROCEDURE I

17.1 Grievance Defined: For the purposes of this Agreement, a grievance is defined as a
dispute about the specific terms or interpretation of a particular clause of this Agreement
or about an alleged violation of the Agreement.

17.2 Grievance Adjustment Steps: Grievances shall be processed within 10 calendar days of
the date on which the grievance occurred or when the employee reasonably should have
known about the occurrence thereof in the following manner:

Stepl:  An employee and/or the Union shall discuss the grievance with the Assistant
Chief or Chief of Police. The employee may meet with or without a Union
representative and shall document the meeting with a memorandum signed by
the employee and the Assistant Chief or Chief of Police. The Assistant Chief
of Chief of Police shall respond to the grievance as quickly as possible, but not
later than 10 days afier the grievance is first discussed. If the Assistant Chief
or Chief of Police fails to timely respond, the grievant has the right to move
the grievance to Step 2 no more than 10 days after the Assistant Chief or Chief
of Police response was due. If the basis of the grievance involves actions of
the Chief of Police, then the parties shall start the grievance process at Step 2.

Step2:  If, within 10 days from receipt of the Assistant Chief or Chief of Police reply,
the grievance remains unresolved, the employee or the Union shall submit
written notice to the Chief of Police, with a copy to the Union if submitted by
the employee, including: 1) statement of the grievance and relevant facts;
2) specific provisions of the Agreement violated; and 3) remedy sought. The
Chief of Police shall meet with the grievant and the Union and attempt to
resolve the grievance. The Chief of Police shall respond to the employee or
the Union in writing within 10 days afier the meeting with a copy to the
Union.

Step 3:  If, within 10 days from receipt of the Chief of Police’s reply, the grievance
remains unadjusted, the grievance may be submitted to the City

City of Grandview
Police Support Agreement: January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021 Pa,



Administrator. The City Administrator may meet with the aggrieved party, the
Chief of Police, and the Union representative, and shall respond within 10
days of the meeting, with a copy to the Union.

Step 4:  If the grievance still remains unsettied, the Union may, within 10 days after
the reply of the City Administrator is due, serve written notice to the City of
the Union’s intention to arbitrate the grievance.

Step 5:  The parties may mutually agree to refer a pending grievance to grievance
mediation through the Public Employment Relations Commission (PERC)
before proceeding to grievance arbitration. If the parties elect to proceed with
grievance mediation, then the representatives shall coordinate to file a request
with PERC as soon as practicable.

17.3  Arbitration: After the grievance has been so submitted, the parties will attempt to
mutually agree on an arbitrator within fifteen (15) calendar days of submission. If the
parties are unable to agree then either party may request from the Washington Public
Employment Relations Commission (PERC) a list of nine (9) arbitrators. The parties
shall select an arbitrator from the list by altenatively striking a name, with the first strike
being determined by lot. The final name left on the list shall be the arbitrator. The
arbitrator’s decision shall be final and binding, but the arbitrator shall have no power to
alter, modify, add to, or detract from the terms of the contract. The arbitrator shall not
have the authority to award punitive damages. The arbitrator’s decision shall be within
the scope and terms of the contract and in writing including detailed findings and
conclusions, together with an explanation of the reasoning utilized in making the
decision. The arbitrator shall be asked to submit his or her decision within thirty (30)
days of the date of the hearing,

174  Grievance Administration Issues: Each party shall be responsible for paying the costs
of presenting its own case in arbitration, including the payment of the party’s own
attorney fees, any non-employee witnesses, and expert witnesses. The costs of the
arbitrator and hearing room shall be borne by each party paying fifty percent (50%) of
any and all arbitrator fees, costs, etc. Either party has the right to request a court reporter
and transcript and if such a request is made each party shall share fifty percent (50%) of
the court reporter’s fees and the costs. Days shall be counted as calendar days.

17.5 Time Limits: Failure of an employee and/or Union to submit a grievance in accordance
with the time limits listed above and failure of the employee and/or Union to timely
pursue a grievance to the next step shall constitute abandonment and dismissal of the
grievance. This does not preclude the parties from extending the grievance time limits by
mutual agreement.

17.6  Election of Remedies: The Union, on behalf of an employee, shall have the right to
have a disciplinary action against the employee reviewed for just cause in accordance
with this Agreement either by the City’s Civil Service Commission or through the
grievance procedure of this Agreement. Once the Union, on behalf of an employee,

City of Grandview
Police Support Agreement: January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021 Pa



elects the forum for review, the employee and the Union are both bound by the
procedural requirements of that forum. That selection shall be final and the Union and
said employee cannot pursue the matter under the other forum.

If the Union, on behalf of an employee, or the employee on their own, elects to have a
disciplinary action against the employee reviewed by the City’s Civil Service
Commission, the Union, or the employee on their own, must make the request within ten
(10) working days of the disciplinary action otherwise the disciplinary action shall be
final and binding. The Union, or the employee on their own, must file a written demand
for an investigatory hearing regarding the disciplinary action through the City’s Civil
Service Commission, and the matter shall be handled in accordance with applicable
procedures as contained in the Rules and Regulations of the City’s Civil Service
Commission.

ARTICLE 18 - STRIKES AND LOCKOUTS |

18.1 The Employer and the Union have agreed that the public interest requires efficient and
uninterrupted performance of all Employer services; therefore, the Union agrees that it
shall not authorize, cause, or condone any work stoppage, strike, slowdown, picketing
(while on duty), or any other interference with Employer functions by employees covered
by this agreement. Employees who engage in any of the above activities shall not be
entitled to any pay or fringe benefits during the period he or she is engaged in such
activity. The employer may discharge or discipline any employee who violates this
article.

[ ARTICLE 19 - LIABILITY INSURANCE |

19.1  The Employer agrees to either provide insurance coverage on behalf of the employees or
provide legal representation for employees as may be reasonably necessary to defend any
claims and/or litigation resulting from any conduct, acts or omission of employees arising
from the scope or course of their service with the Employer; provided, however, that the
provisions of this Article shall be in-applicable and of no force and effect if the employee
refuses to co-operate with the employer with respect to said defense, nor shall it apply to
any dishonest, fraudulent, criminal or malicious act of an employee which is outside of
the scope and course of his or her employment with the Employer. Any legal
representation provided by the Employer shall not apply in any accident, occurrence, or
circumstance where the employee or Employer is individually insured.

I ARTICLE 20 - UNIFORMS, EQUIPMENT & SAFETY |

20.1 The Employer shall provide all regular employees with the required uniforms and
equipment needed in the performance of his duties as determined by the Employer.
In addition, the Employer shall also provide normal cleaning up to two (2) uniforms per
week or additional cleaning to include extraordinary circumstances and maintenance &
repair of items damaged or worn through normal use in the performance of departmental
duties.

City of Grandview
Police Support Agreement: January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021 Pa



20.2  All protective clothing and safety equipment required of employees in the performance of
their duties shall be purchased by and remain the property of the Employer. Upon
quitting or discharge, all property of the Employer shall be retumed to the Chief of Police
or his designee.

20.3 1t shall be the responsibility of all employees to represent the City to the public in a
manner which shall be courteous, efficient, and helpful. Personal appearance shall
always be neat, with clean clothing and with hair and beards trimmed, in accordance with
the Police Department Procedure Manual.

20.4 The Employer recognizes the need for the development of safe working practices for
every employee and desires to promote on-the-job safety, encouraging the proper design
and use of buildings, equipment, and other devices. Safety equipment and clothing
supplied by the Employer should be utilized by employees while engaged in all duties for
the City of Grandview where practical or as directed by the Chief or his representative,
and as prescribed by State and Federal laws regarding safety.

i ARTICLE 21 - GENERAL PROVISIONS AND UNION ACTIVITY |

21.1  Union Investigative and Visitation Privileges: Authorized agents of the Union shall
have access to the Employer's establishment during working hours for the purpose of
adjusting disputes, investigating working conditions, and ascertaining that the Agreement
is being adhered to, provided there is no undue interruption of the Employer's working
schedule. The Employer will be notified by the Union Representative of his presence on
the premises.

21.2  Bulletin Board: The Employer agrees to provide suitable space to be used as a Union
bulletin board. Posting by the Union on such board is to be confined to official business
of the Union.

21.3 Non-discrimination: It is mutually agreed that there shall be no discrimination because
of lawful union activity, union membership, race, color, religion, sex, age, marital status,
sexual orientation, national origin, genetic information (Title II of the Genetic
Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008), or disability that does not prevent proper
performance of the job (bona fide occupational qualification). The Union and Employer
representatives shall work cooperatively to carry out these principles. Employees who
believe they have been discriminated against shall use the process established in City
policy

214 Political Activity: The rules governing activities of employees shall adhere to the
provisions of RCW 41.06.250.

21.5 Gender: Where the masculine gender has been used in any provision of this Agreement,
it is used solely for the purpose of illustration and shall not in any way be used to

City of Grandview
Police Support Agreement: Janvary 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021 Pa



designate the sex of the employee eligible for any position, classification or the benefits
provided in this Agreement.

21.6 Outside Employment: An employee shall not engage in employment other than his or
her City job if such employment interferes with the efficient performance of his or her
City job or constitutes a conflict of interest.

21.7 Reserve Unit: There shall exist, at the option of the Employer a reserve unit of law
enforcement reserve officers to which the provisions of this labor agreement shall not
apply. The Employer will notify regular employees by posting the status of reserve law
enforcement officers regarding commissioned versus non-commissioned. Regular
employees, as required by the Employer shall work with reserve law enforcement officers
regardless of commissioned versus non-commissioned status. This unit of law
enforcement officers may be utilized as determined by the Employer to perform those
duties normally performed by bargaining unit personnel. Usage of reserve law
enforcement officer would include circumstances involving temporary replacement of
regular employees in case of vacations, holidays, sickness, any type of schooling,
circumstances involving short-handedness in personnel, and those circumstances
involved in a bona fide emergency.

[ ARTICLE 22 - PERSONNEL RECORDS |

22.1 The Employer shall maintain personnel files for each employee. Such files shall show
salary, change in employment status, training received, and such other information as
may be considered pertinent. Employee records shall be considered confidential and
shall be accessible only to the employee, his or her immediate supervisor, and such other
officials as may be authorized by the Employer or required by law.

22.2 Employees shall have the right to review material in their personnel files during regular
business hours. The employee may have a representative of the Union accompany him or
her if so desired. Upon request, copies of documents in the personnel file shall be
provided to the employee. The employee shall have the right to inspect his/her personnel
file.

22.3 The personnel file will contain all evaluation reports that have been completed by an
authorized supervisor.

22.4 Materials judged by the employee to be negative and/or derogatory may be answered by
the employee in writing. Such written response shall be attached to the material in
question and become a part of the personnel file.

22.5 The employee shall have the right to add their written comments to materials added to the
personnel file. '

22.6 Personnel files are the property of the Employer. The Employer agrees that the contents
of the personnel files shall be confidential and shall restrict the use of information in the

City of Grandview
Police Support Agreement: January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021 Pa,



files to official use by the Employer. Employee disciplinary records may be subject to a
public records request, and the Employer is obliged to comply with the legal
requirements pertaining to such requests.

22.7 Any written reprimand in an employee personnel file will be removed from the file after
three (3) years if there has been no recurrence of the type or kind of conduct giving rise to
the reprimand. If there is a recurrence, the written reprimand will remain in the file for
three (3) years from the date of the recurrence.

22.8 Suspension without Pay, Demotion, Last Chance Agreements, and Discharge: Any
suspension without pay, demotion, last chance agreement, and discharge shall remain
permanently in the personnel file, unless otherwise mutually agreed.

22,9 When an employee reviews his personnel file, he will sign and date said acknowledgment
of the review.

| ARTICLE 23 - ENTIRE AGREEMENT I

23.1  All matters not specifically covered in this Agreement shall be deemed to have been
raised and disposed of as specifically covered herein. It is agreed that this document
contains the full and complete Agreement between the parties hereto, and for all whose
benefit this Agreement is made and no oral statement shall add to or supersede any of its
provisions and no party shall be required during the term of this Agreement to negotiate
or bargain upon any issues unless mutuaily agreed to by the parties.

| ARTICLE 24 - SAVINGS CLAUSE |

24.1  If any Article or section of this agreement should be held invalid by operation of law or
by any tribunal of competent jurisdiction, or by mutual agreement, the balance of this
agreement shall continue in full force and effect. The Article or section held invalid shall
be modified as required by law or a tribunal of competent jurisdiction, or shall be re-
negotiated for the purpose of a replacement. In the event that the two parties do not agree
that an item should be severed, then the Article or section in question shall be suspended
from function or operation until the issue has been resolved by the appropriate legal

. authority.

| ARTICLE 25 - SUPPLEMENTAL PENSION PLAN |

25.1 The bargaining unit members pre-tax wages shall be reduced each month by the amounts
paid on account of each member pursuant to paragraphs 25.3 and 25.4 hereof. The
Employer is not obligated to make any contributions beyond the amounts by which the
contractual wage rates are reduced now or in the future.

25.2 In lieu of an identical amount of pre-tax wages of each bargaining unit member, the
Employer shall pay each month into the Western Conference of Teamsters Pension Trust
Fund the below referenced amounts on account of each member of the bargaining unit.

City of Grandview
Police Support Agreement: January I, 2019, through December 31, 2021 Pa



25.3  Effective January 1, 2017, as designated below, the Employer shall pay the amounts
stated below to the Western Conference of Teamsters Pension Trust Fund on account of
each member of the bargaining unit for every hour for which straight time compensation
was paid not to exceed 2080 hours per calendar year. Said amounts are to be computed
monthly, one dollar ($1.00) per compensable hour not to exceed two thousand eighty
dollars ($2,080.00) per calendar year. In the event an employee terminates prior to the
end of the year, their total straight time hours shall be calculated to ensure each straight
time hour has been paid to the trust.

25.4  The total amount due for each calendar month for each of the bargaining unit employees
as set forth in this provision shall be remitted in a lump sum not later than ten (10)
business days after the last business day of such preceding month.

25.5 The Employer hereby acknowledges that he has received a true copy of the Western
Conference of Teamsters Pension Plan Agreement and Declaration of Trust and
Regulations and shall be considered a party thereto. The Employer further agrees that the
employer-trustees named in this Trust, and their successors in trust, are and shall be his
representatives, and consents to be bound by the action and determination of the Trustees.

25.6 The Employer does not make any representations as to whether or not the amounts by
which wages are reduced and which are paid into the Trust Fund is non-taxable or
taxable. Should it be determined at some later date that the above-referenced payments
are taxable income, General Teamsters Local No. 760 will indemnify and hold the
Employer harmless against all claims of employees arising from such adverse tax
consequence. Should existing tax law change with respect to this particular Pension
Trust, the parties agree to meet to bargain a resolution to the matter.

| ARTICLE 26 - VEBA MEDICAL SAVINGS ACCOUNT |

26.1 Full-time police support bargaining unit members’ pre-tax wages shall be reduced each
month by twenty dollars ($20.00) paid on account of each member. The employer is not
obligated to make any contributions towards this benefit. The Employer shall make the
wage reduction from each employee’s wages, now or in the future.

26.2 In lieu of an identical amount of pre-tax wages of each full-time bargaining unit member,
the employer shall pay each month into the VEBA Medical Savings Account the above
referenced amount on account of each full-time police support bargaining unit member.

26.3  The total amount due for each calendar month for each of the bargaining unit employees
as set forth in this provision shall be remitted in a lump sum not later than ten (10)
business days after the last business day of such preceding month.

26.4 The Employer does not make any representations as to whether or not the amounts by

which wages are reduced and which are paid into the VEBA Medical Savings Account is
non-taxable or taxable. Should it be determined at some later date that the above-

City of Grandview
Police Support Agreement: January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021 Pa



referenced payments are taxable income, Teamsters Local No. 760 will indemnify and
hold the Employer harmless against all claims of employees arising from such adverse
tax consequence. Should existing tax law change with respect to this particular Medical
Savings Account, the parties agree to meet to bargain a resolution to the matter.

| ARTICLE 27 - PAID FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE |

27.1 Paid family medical leave premiums shall be paid by the employee and the Employer in
accordance with the current RCW provisions.

| ARTICLE 28 - TERM OF AGREEMENT F

28.1 This Agreement shall be binding on the City, the Union, and employees, and shall be
effective as of 12:01 A.M., PST January 1, 2019 except as otherwise indicated in this
CBA and remain in full force and effect through midnight, PST, December 31, 2021.

28.2 If no Agreement is reached for the calendar year following the effective dates of this
Agreement, then the provisions of this Agreement shall remain in effect until such time
as the next Agreement is ratified by the City and the Union.

28.3 Contracting Out:  The parties have discussed the topic of contracting out during
negotiations. Currently, corrections functions are being contracted out with another
jurisdiction. Based on the provisions of Section 12.1.2 pertaining to the test schedule, the
City Administrator will determine whether too much overtime is created by the test
schedule and whether to contract out part, none or all dispatch services. If the City
Administrator decides to address the topic of contracting out of dispatch activities, the
Employer will provide the Union with sixty (60) to ninety (90) calendar days’ notice of
the Employer’s intent to contract out and will provide the Union the opportunity to
bargain the effect of such contracting out during the sixty (60) to ninety (90) calendar day
period. If the parties conclude bargaining the effects during this period then the outcome
of those negotiations will be implemented. If the parties have not been able to conclude
bargaining the effect or if the parties disagree, then the Employee has the right to proceed
with its plans for contracting out services.

City of Grandview
Police Support Agreement: January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021 Pa



[SIGNATURE PAGE]

SIGNED FOR THE CITY:
CITY OF GRANDVIEW

By

Gloria Mendoza, Mayor

Date

By

Cus Arteaga, City Administrator

Date

Attest

Anita Palacios, City Clerk

Date

Represented by:

S MY

v PNMenke, )\/Ianagement Attorney

bate___ 2/ S;/ (9

City of Grandview

SIGNED FOR THE UNION:
TEAMSTERS LOCAL 760

BYZ%‘“«L/\_.
Leonard J. Crou¢h, Secretary Treasurer

2.5 .19

Date

m 1 e Y —

David Simmons, Business Representative

Date L. ‘5-\6(

ORIGINAL

Police Support Agreement: January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021 Pa5 ?



APPENDIX "A" - CLASSIFICATIONS AND WAGES FOR 2019, 2020, AND 2021

1.A.l The following salary schedule for bargaining unit employees shall be effective as of
January 1, 2019, provided, however, retroactivity shall only apply to employees

employed on or after the date of signing of this CBA by the last signing party:

Dispatcher/Clerk
Year — Wage Increase Entry 12 Months | 24 Months | 36 Months | 48 Months | 60 Months
1/1/2019 — 3% 53185 $3311 $3436 $3563 $3687 $3811
1/1/2020 - 3% $3280 $3411 $3539 $3670 $3798 $3925
1/1/2021 - 3% $3379 $3513 $3645 $3780 $3912 $4043
Lead Dispatcher
Year — Wage Increase | 60 Months
1/1/2019 - 3% $4679
1/1/2020 - 3% $4820
1/1/2021 - 3% $4964
Certified Corrections Officer
Year — Wage Increase Entry 12 Months | 24 Months | 36 Months | 48 Months | 60 Months
1/1/2019 - 3% 53783 $3902 $4022 $4142 34250 $4378
1/1/2020 - 3% $3897 34019 $4143 $4266 $4377 $4509
1/1/2021 - 3% 34014 $4140 54267 $4394 $4509 $4644

Effective beginning January 1, 2019, specialty pay for interpreter at One Hundred Twenty Five
Dollars ($125) per month, subject to proficiency testing by a third party to be determined by the
Employer. Testing shall measure proficiency in speaking, reading and writing. If the employee
successfully passes the proficiency examination, they shall receive One Hundred Twenty-Five
Dollars ($125) per month while assigned to the bilingual capacity.

Effective beginning January 1, 2019, an employee specifically assigned Communications
Training Officer duties shall receive specialty pay of ten percent (10%) above their normal pay
only when performing those duties.

Effective beginning January 1, 2019, an employee who obtains a Corrections Officer
Certification will be paid specialty pay of one hundred dollars ($100.00) per month for such
certification as long as it remains valid. This additional one hundred dollars ($100.00) per month

does not apply to any and all employees who currently are receiving wages as a certified
Corrections Officer.

Only the Police Chief or designee shall determine how many employees are needed in each
specialty above and the qualifications needed for such specialty and eligibility for the pay.

City of Grandview
Police Support Agreement: January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021



APPENDIX "B" - EDUCATIONAL INCENTIVE PAY

1.B.1 Effective beginning January 1, 2019, each regular fuil time employee in the bargaining
unit shall receive eighty dollars ($80.00) per month additional pay after receiving an
Associate Degree (2 year) of Police Science, Sociology, Psychology, Business, Computer
Science, Education or other degree, as may be determined by the Police Chief which
benefits the Police Department, from an accredited institution of higher learning.

1.B.2 Effective beginning January 1, 2019, each regular full time employee in the bargaining
unit shall receive an additional one hundred twenty five dollars ($125.00) per month
additional pay after receiving a four (4) year degree relating to Police Science or Business
from an accredited institution of higher learning. Every couple of years after achieving a
four (4) year degree, five (5) credits of continuing Police related education is required.
This continuing education process as well as the appropriate Police related education
fields will be outlined in a Memorandum of Understanding.

City of Grandview
Police Support Agreement: January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021



APPENDIX "C" - LONGEVITY PAY

1.C.1 Longevity Pay will be payable each November 30, for each full time employee of record
on November 30, to be calculated on each anniversary date of employment as follows:

Longevity schedule:

60 months 1% of base pay
120 months 2% of base pay
180 months 3% of base pay
300 months 4% of base pay

Employees hired prior to January 1, 2010, that have not yet met the 10-year mark for
longevity shall be grandfathered in at the old longevity rate of 1% for their 3-4 years of
service and 1.5% for their 5-9 years of service. Once the employee reaches the 10-year
mark, they shall follow the above chart for longevity pay.

City of Grandview
Police Support Agreement: January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021



APPENDIX "D" - SUBSTANCE ABUSE POLICY & TESTING PROCEDURE

THIS APPENDIX IS SUBJECT TO A REOPENER TO BE INITIATED BY EITHER
PARTY TO ADDRESS CURRENT STANDARDS AND REGULATIONS

L OBIJECTIVE

The City of Grandview Police Department has a strong commitment to provide a safe
work environment for its employees and to establish programs promoting high standards
of employee health and safety. Consistent with that commitment, this Substance Abuse
Policy and Testing Procedure has been established.

IL POLICY

A. The unauthorized use, sale, transfer, or possession of alcohol, drugs, controlled
substances and/or "mood altering" substances (except the possession or use of
prescribed medication, verifiable by a current, properly issued prescription) during
work hours, (including meal and rest periods), on City property, in City vehicles, or
in personal vehicles while conducting City business is prohibited. Violation of this
section of the policy shall result in disciplinary action, which may include
termination of employment in accordance with Grandview Civil Service Rule 16.

B.  With the exception of employees authorized to consume alcohol and/or drugs while
performing job functions; reporting for work impaired by the use of intoxicants, or
becoming impaired by the use of intoxicants during working hours through the use
of alcohol, drugs (including prescribed medication), controlled substances and/or
"mood altering" substances is prohibited. Violation of this section of the policy
shall result in disciplinary action which may include termination of employment.

C. Knowledge of cautions and warnings printed on the prescribed and/or "over-the-
counter" medication container labels are the sole responsibility of the employee.
Consultation with the employee's attending physician, concemning the effects a
substance may have on that employee, may be appropriate. An employee utilizing
prescribed and/or "over-the-counter" medication(s) that could adversely affect job
safety or performance must immediately report that fact to his/her supervisor.
Violation of this section of the policy shall result in disciplinary action, which may
include termination of employment.

D.  The City reserves the right to conduct searches of City property, City vehicles or
equipment at any time or place. The City reserves the right to conduct searches of
an employee or any vehicle used by the employee while on duty, when there are
reasonable grounds to believe the employee is in violation of this policy. Failure to
cooperate with these procedures, without just cause, may be grounds for dismissal.

City of Grandview
Police Support Agreement: January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021 Pa



E. The City recognizes drug dependency as an illness and a major health problem,
The City also recognizes drug abuse as a potential health, safety, and security
problem. Employees needing help in dealing with such problems are encouraged to
use our Employee Assistance Program (EAP) and health insurance plans, as
appropriate. Conscientious efforts to seek such help will not jeopardize any
employee's job, and will not be noted in any personnel record.

F. Employees must, as a condition of employment, abide by the terms of the above
policy and report any conviction under a criminal drug statute for violations
occurring on City premises while conducting City business. A report of a
conviction must be made within five (5) days after the conviction. (This
requirement is mandated by the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988.)

This policy supersedes any and all previously issued City Drug/Alcohol Policies and will
be applied equally to all Police Department employees.

III. SUBSTANCE ABUSE TESTING
A. Reasonable Cause Testing Only

The applicable substance abuse testing procedures outlined below will be initiated if
the following event occurs: A supervisor, through objective observation or
investigation or evaluation concludes that an employee has consumed and/or used
controlled substances. The supervisor must be trained and certified in the area of
proper detection. All relevant facts pertaining to an investigation conducted
pursuant to the event mentioned above will be documented in writing and preserved
for future reference by the City and Union,

SUBSTANCE ABUSE TESTING PROCEDURES

1. The City will transport the suspected employee to a pre-determined testing
facility near his/her work area.

2.  The employee will be requested to submit to the testing procedures. The
employee has the right to refuse to submit to the tests; however, refusal to
submit to the tests may be grounds for termination.

3.  The employee will provide a urine sample or breath sample. The urine sample
will be provided for analysis to determine the amount, if any, contained in the
employee's urine of all substances listed in paragraph six below, except ethyl
alcohol. The breath sample will be provided for analysis to determine the
amount, if any, of ethyl alcohol contained in the employee's blood. A
professional Medical Review Officer (MRO) selected by the City will analyze
the urine sample results. The breathalyzer test will be administered by the

City of Grandview
Police Support Agreement: January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021 Pa,



City Police Chief or Assistant Police Chief, using up-to-date State-mandated
methods.

4.  Collection of the urine specimen will be under the direction of qualified
medical personnel. All provisions of the attached "chain of custody" form
will be adhered to. Collection of the urine specimen or breath sample will take
place as soon as possible following the observation. The employee will
cooperate fully in the collection of the specimen or sample. An employee
tampering with the specimen or sample or refusing to submit to the test within
a reasonable period of time may be terminated. If the employee refuses to
provide the urine sample within a 24-hour time frame (unless physically
unable), that action will result in disciplinary measures, which may include
termination of employment.

The employee has the right to an independent urine specimen analysis or
blood test for alcohol at a facility of his/her choosing, at the employee's
expense. To facilitate an employee's request for an independent analysis, at
the time of the original specimen collective, two (2) samples must be taken.
The original testing laboratory will place one (1) sample in secure refrigerated
storage. If the first (1st) sample reveals a positive result, the employee will
indicate which laboratory he wishes the second (2nd) sample be tested. If the
independent analysis results are negative, the employee will be reimbursed for
the cost of the second (2nd) test and for all lost wages and benefits. (i.e., sick
leave hours restored to sick leave bank).

5. After collection of the specimen or sample, the employee will be transported
to his/her residence or other safe location. The employee will not be allowed
to continue work until the test results become available and are evaluated.
Pay for this period of time shall be deducted from the employee’s sick leave
payable with the first day the employee was removed from the workplace.

6.  The urine specimen will be forwarded to Smith Kline Beecham Clinical Labs,
Seattle for analysis. Strict adherence to the chain of custody requirements will
be followed during the transportation of the specimen to the laboratory. The
laboratory through the MRO will analyze the specimen for the following
substances (the positive level of detection is in parentheses following the
name of each substance): amphetamines (700 ng/ml), barbiturates (300
ng/ml), benzodiazepines (300 ng/ml), cannabinoids (100 ng/ml), cocaine
metabolite (300 ng/ml), methadone (300 ng/ml), methaqualone (300 ng/ml),
opiates (300 ng/ml), phencyclidine (75 ng/ml), and propoxyphene (300
ng/ml). The laboratory will communicate the test results to the Medical
Review Officer, who in turn will relate the results to the employee, City
Supervisor and the Mayor. Positive test results will be communicated to the
employee, by the MRO, for clarification.

City of Grandview
Police Support Agreement: January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021 Pa,



The positive ievel of detection for ethyl alcohol as it relates to the breathalyzer
test is .05 gr/210L of breath*. The positive level of detection for ethyl alcohol
as it relates to the employee's independent blood test is 0.04gr/dl. *Per Part
383.5 (Federal Motor Carrier Regulations) definition of "alcohol
concentration."

7. For purposes of this policy, being "impaired"” or "under the influence" means
being unable to perform work in a safe and productive manner, being in a
physical or mental condition which creates a risk to the safety and well being
of the individual, other employees, the public, or City property. The
symptoms of influence and/or impairment are not confined to those consistent
with misbehavior or to obvious impairment of physical or mental ability such
as slurred speech or difficulty in maintaining balance. AN EMPLOYEE
WILL BE PRESUMED TO BE IMPAIRED AND IN VIOLATION OF THIS
POLICY WHENEVER THE PRESENCE OF DRUGS OR ALCOHOL, AT
OR ABOVE THE LEVELS SET FORTH IN PARAGRAPH SIX, IS
DETECTED IN A SUBSTANCE ABUSE TEST ADMINISTERED UNDER
THE TERMS OF THIS POLICY.

8.  Test results will be stored at the Grandview City Hall in a secure file outside
the regular personnel files. Access to the file will be extremely restricted—
only the City Supervisor, Mayor, and the Police Chief will have access. All
records will be treated in the most confidential fashion by the City and the
Union.

9. All costs associated with substance abuse testing, other than a positive test
result of an independent analysis requested by the employee, will be paid by
the City.

10. Should analysis of the specimens indicate a negative level of a substance in an
employee's system, the employee will be reinstated to his/her former position
and compensated for lost wages and benefits. i.e., sick leave hours restored to
sick leave bank.

11. Should analysis of the specimens indicate a positive level of a substance in an
employee's system, the employee will have the following options:

(a) Terminate employment with the employer, or

(b) The employee shall be evaluated by a qualified drug/alcohol counselor to
determine the extent of his/ her chemical dependency. If, in the opinion
of the counselor, the employee requires rehabilitation services (on a one
(1) chance only basis unless mutually agreed otherwise), the employee
will be placed on a leave-of-absence for a period not to exceed ninety
(90) days and enroll in a certified alcohol and/or drug rehabilitation
program. The employee will be allowed to use Sick Leave during this

City of Grandview
Police Support Agreement: January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021 . Pa



leave period. The City reserves the right of concurrence on the selection
of the rehabilitation counselor, facility and program content. Cost of the
rehabilitation program will be paid by the employee or medical
insurance provider (within contractual limitations). The employee will
submit semi-weekly written progress reports from his/her counselor
during the entire treatment program. The employee will be reinstated to
his/her former position without prejudice when the following conditions
have been met: (a) The employee has completed the treatment program;
and (b) The attending counselor has formally released the employee to
return to work; and (c) The employee agrees to submit to a substance
abuse test. During the next twenty-four (24) months following
reinstatement, the employee consents to be tested for the presence of
alcohol, drugs, and/or controlled substances no more than four (4) times,
with or without cause. Any subsequent violation of this policy will be
grounds for immediate discharge.

IV.  SELF-RECOGNIZED SUBSTANCE ABUSE
Employees with a substance abuse problem must immediately notify their supervisor of
their condition. For evaluation purposes, a substance abuse test may be appropriate. If,
in the opinion of a qualified drug/ alcohol counselor, the employee requires rehabilitation

services, the employee will have an option to enroll in a rehabilitation program and be
subjected to the guidelines as outlined in Section III (11) above.

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH SERVICES
(509-839-4191)

L. H. Butler, D.O,, P.S Betty Jo Leija
Medical Director Community Coordinator

City of Grandview
Police Support Agreement: January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021 Pa



CONSENT AND RELEASE FORM

Pursuant to the stated Substance Abuse Policy & Testing Procedure of the City of Grandview,
Police Department, I hereby give my consent and authorize Occupational Health Services and
SmithKline Beecham Clinical Laboratories, Seattle, to perform testing or medical procedures
necessary to determine the presence and/or levels of drugs and alcohol in my body.

I further give consent to release to the City of Grandview's Medical Review Officer the results of
any tests or medical procedures to determine the presence and/or level of drugs or aiccohol.

Client signature and date Witness and date

Client Social Security Number Client name (printed)

The client must report to the office of L. H. Butler, D.O.,
803 Lincoln Ave., (Sunnyside Medical Center), Sunnyside, WA, for

testing at (time) on (date)

Supervisor authorizing drug testing

City of Grandview
Police Support Agreement: January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021 Pa



OBSERVED BEHAVIOR
REASONABLE CAUSE RECORDING FORM

Employee's name:

Date of observation:

Time of observation:

From: a.m, p.m.
To: a.m. p.mn.
Location:

Observed personal behavior: Check all appropriate items

1. Speech: Normal Incoherent Confused
Slurred Whispering Silent
2. Balance: Normal Swaying Staggering
Falling
3. Walking and turning: Normal _  Stumbling Swaying
Arms Raised for Balance Falling
Reaching for support
4. Awareness; Normal Confused
Sleepy or Stupor Paranoid

Lack of Coordination

Lh

. Breath Odor; Alcohol Smell

6. Other observed actions or behavior:

Above behavior witnessed by:

Signed date

Month Day Year

Signed date

Month Day Year

City of Grandview
Police Support Agreement: January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021 Pa



THIS FORM MUST BE PREPARED EVERY TIME A PERSON IS SUSPECTED OF
DRUG USE BY ACTIONS, APPEARANCE, OR CONDUCT WHILE ON DUTY
WITHIN 24 HOURS OR BEFORE THE TEST RESULTS ARE RELEASED.

EMPLOYEE BRIEFING AND INSTRUCTIONS
For
DRUG TESTING

YOU HAVE BEEN SELECTED FOR URINE DRUG TESTING

The collection of your urine will be conducted under the procedures listed below. These
regulations allow for individual privacy unless there is reason to believe that a particular
individual may alter or substitute the urine specimen to be provided. The collection site persons
will take precautions to ensure that your specimen is not adulterated or diluted during the
collection procedure. Your specimen collection must also follow strict chain of custody and
security procedures.

In addition:

1. Photo identification must be presented at the collection site or personal individual
identification is necessary.

2. You will be asked to remove any unnecessary outer garments such as a coat and
jacket.

3. All personal belongings like briefcases will remain with the outer garments. You
may retain your wallet.

4. You will be instructed to wash and dry your hands prior to providing a specimen.

5. You will be provided a sealed collection container or bottle, or it will be unwrapped
in your presence.

6.  Your specimen will be provided in the privacy of a stall or otherwise partitioned
area that allows for individual privacy.

7. After handing the specimen bottle to the collector, you should keep the specimen in
full view at all times until it is sealed and labeled. This protects you against the
wrong label being put on your bottle or someone possibly tampering with your
specimen.

8.  If the collection site person has reason to believe that you may have altered or
substituted the specimen, the person will notify the City's Medical Review Officer.
Should you tamper, adulterate, or in any way attempt to dilute the specimen, the
collection site person will request authorization to collect a second specimen under
direct observation by the same gender collection site person.

City of Grandview
Police Support Agreement: January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021 Pa



9. You will be asked to initial the identification label on the specimen container for the
purpose of certifying that it came from you.

10.  You will also be asked to provide information on the chain of custody form, Section
VII, on copies 3 through 6 only, and certify that the urine specimen identified as
having been collected from you is in fact the specimen you provided. You will
receive copy 4 of the chain of custody form on which you may want to make a list
of medications you are taking.

I1.  After the laboratory analysis, the results will be forwarded to the Medical Review
officer working for your employer. Prior to making a final decision to verify a
positive test result to your employer, the Medical Review Officer will give you an
opportunity to discuss the test results and submit medical documentation of legally
prescribed medications.

12. A complete listing of the collection procedures may be found in Title 49 CFR Part
40.25.

City of Grandview
Police Support Agreement: January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021 Pa



APPENDIX "E" - POST-INCIDENT TRAUMA RESPONSE TO THE EMPLOYEE

The City recognizes that employee involvement in specific work-related incidents may cause
serious trauma to the employee. This trauma, more specifically Post Traumatic Stress
Syndrome, is a psychological and/or physiological response associated with traumatic events that
are generally outside the range of usual human experience. The resulting trauma can create
immediate, short term, and/or long term symptoms.

The goal of this program is to provide an outline for response to an employee who has been
involved in a death or serious injury incident. This outline is an attempt to recognize some of the
legal and societal needs of the employee and his family.

This outline applies to all departmental personnel.

A. When an employee is the cause of a death or serious injury incident, he will be
placed on mandatory administrative leave with pay for a minimum of forty-eight
(48) consecutive hours if the employee was scheduied to work. Administrative
leave is in the interest of the employee and the department and shall not be waived.

B. The employee will be afforded the opportunity to name a fellow employee to assist
with transportation needs, companionship, and moral support.

1. If a fellow officer is named, that officer will also be placed on concurrent
administrative leave of forty-eight (*48) hours’ duration.

2. Communications between the two employees will be considered confidential
and privileged for the purpose of any departmental investigation or review.
However, nothing herein should be construed to circumvent the Court's
subpoena authority in any resulting criminal matter.

C. The City and/or Chief of Police shall designate a post-trauma provider for
evaluation, care, and counseling of any employee who has been the cause of a death
or serious injury incident. This counseling is mandatory, cannot be waived, and
will include a "fit for duty" evaluation. Initial counseling should take place within
forty-eight (48) hours if at all possible.

D. The City and/or Chief of Police may seek and consider the professional opinion of
any PTSD qualified psychological counselor and/or treating physician as to whether
the employee is affected in such a way as to make the employee a substantial risk to
himself or to substantially interfere with his ability to perform the job.
Recommendations with regard to modified duties and/or extended leaves are
subject to LEOFF and/or L&I disability procedures.

E. If the post-trauma provider believes that an employee needs more in-depth or
extended assistance, he will refer the employee to a source qualified to provide such

City of Grandview
Police Support Agreement: January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021 Pageff6



assistance. The referral must be coordinated with the City and/or Chief of Police
and be consistent with LEOFF and/or L&I requirements,

1. The responsibility for payment of continued treatment must be specified prior
to the first appointment. This responsibility should fall first to the appropriate
LEOFF or L&I program, the to the employee's medical insurance, and finally
to the City. In cases where the City assumes the cost of further care, the
provider must clearly understand the scope of services expected.

F.  The Chief of Police should do his best to assist the affected employee in matters of
relevant concern such as expeditious repair/replacement of damaged equipment or
clothing, response to inquiries relating to personnel adjustments, payroll, defined
leaves, etc.

G. The City attomey shall be available to provide information to the employee
regarding various legal actions which may arise in connection with the death or
serious injury incident. He may assist the employee in determining when to retain
legal counsel and what the employee's rights to legal counsel are under contract and
city ordinance. He may also provide other legal assistance as possible with the
understanding that he, as an attorney employed by the City, cannot ethically
represent the employee in certain proceedings.

H. If an employee, while acting as an agent of the City is witness to or involved in a
Critical Incident - but not the direct cause of a death or serious injury - shall, on
request, be provided initial consultation with a department designated post-trauma
PTSD Qualified provider. Should the incident involve a number of emergency
services personnel; the City shall offer access to a Critical Incident Debriefing
Meeting. This meeting should take place within seventy-two (72) hours following
the incident if at all possible. All conversations between the employees and
debriefing personnel are to be considered confidential.

For purposes of this section, a Critical Incident is defined as any situation which may cause a

person to experience unusually strong emotional and/or physiological responses that has the
potential to interfere with the ability of the employee to perform his duties.

City of Grandview
Police Support Agreement: January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021 Page



WASHINGTON TEAMSTERS WELFARE TRUST
SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT PROVIDING FOR PARTICIPATION IN TRUST

The Employer and Labor Organization below are parties to a Collective Bargaining Agreement providing for participation in the
above Trust. An enforceable Collective Bargaining Agreement must exist as a condition precedent to participation in the Trust.

City of Grandview Dispatch & Corrections

Teamsters Local Union 760

Employer Name Labor Organization (Union) Name
207 W 2nd 1211 W Lincoln Ave

Address Address

Grandview WA 98930 Yakima WA 98902

City State  Zip Code City State  Zip Code
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT

The parties’ Collective Bargaining Agreement is in effect from: 1.1.2019 to: 12.31.2021

(] New Account [ Renewal — AccountNo. 109965 Approximate No. of Covered Employees 5

INFORMATION CONCERNING EMPLOYER'S BUSINESS
Employer EIN (Tax ID No,)
Employer is: @ Public Entity D Corporation - State of

O Partnership [ sole Proprietorship e

If Partnership or Sole Proprietorship, provide name/s of the owner or partners:

BENEFIT PLAN(S) DESIGNATED IN COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT

The Collective Bargaining Agreement provides that contributions will be made to the Trust on behalf of all employees for whom
the Employer is required to contribute under the Trust Operating Guidelines for the purpose of providing such employees and
their dependents with the following benefit plan(s): (The undersigned parties acknowledge the receipt of a copy of the Trust
Operating Guidelines which by this reference are made a part hereof.)

COVERAGE IN BARGAINING AGREEMENT (For renewals, list all coverages, not just changes) Monthly Rate
Medical Plan (W A (B COc 1z $1415.00
] A - $30,000 Employee/$3,000 Dependent
Life/AD&D L] B - $15,000 Employee/$1,500 Dependent §
D C - $5,000 Employee/$500 Dependent
Weekly TimeLoss [ JE-8500 [ JA-s400 [JB-$300 [Jc-s200 [JD-$100 5
Disability Waivers D Additional 9 months Disability Waiver of Contributions - Medical only 5
Domestic Partners |:| Domestic Partners — Medical 3
Dental Plan [Ja B (Jc s
Domestic Partners || Domestic Partners — Dental $
Vision Plan D EXT $
Domestic Parmers || Domestic Partners — Vision $

Will there be any coverage changes before the Collective Bargaining Agreement’s expiration? [[] Yes [®] No. If yes, attach
a Subscription Agreement for each change.

EFFECTIVE DATE OF CONTRIBUTIONS - A Subscription Agreement must be submitted in advance of the effective date below.

Contributions above are effective (month, year) March ,2018 based on employment in the prior month.

Important: Coverage is effective in the month following the month in which the contributions are due based on the Trust’s eligibility
lag month. For example, contributions effective April based on March emploeyment will provide coverage in May.

EXPIRATION OF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT

Upon expiration of the above-referenced Collective Bargaining Agreement, the Employer agrees to continue to contribute to the
Trust in the same amount and manner as required in the Collective Bargaining Agreement until such time as the Employer and the
Labor Organization either enter into a successor Collective Bargaining Agreement, which conforms to the Trust Operating
Guidelines, or one party notifies the other in writing (with a copy to the Trust) of its intent to cancel such obligation five (5) days
after receiving notice, whichever occurs first. The Trust reserves the right to immediately terminate participation in the Trust
upon the failure to execute this or any future Subscription Agreement or to comply with the Trust Operating Guidelines as

amended by the Trustees from time to time.
For Union Mﬂ/' M ? 2
[74

Title Sec-Treas Date 2.5.1

For Employer
Title/Assn

Date




RESOLUTION NO. 2019-6

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GRANDVIEW, WASHINGTON,
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY AND AUTHORIZING IMMEDIATE SNOW REMOVAL

WHEREAS, the City has experienced significant snow fall over a period of
several days, and which is forecast to last for several more days; and

WHEREAS, existing resources and equipment of the City are inadequate to
remove the snow from the City's roadways and otherwise maintain the public health,
safety and welfare; and

WHEREAS, the immediate snow removal within City limits is necessary for the
protection of the public health, safety and welfare; and,

WHEREAS, due to the ongoing nature of the snowfall, there is insufficient time to
follow the normal bid procedures in order to complete the snow removal; and,

WHEREAS, the City has hired independent contractors to complete snow
removal within City limits on a time and materials basis; and,

WHEREAS, staff has estimated the cost for the emergency snow removal to be
approximately $100,000.00 for materials, labor and equipment,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF GRANDVIEW, WASHINGTON, as follows:

The City Council of the City of Grandview hereby declares a public emergency to
exist as of February 9, 2019 for the emergency snow removal within City limits. The
purpose of this declaration is to invoke the waiver of competitive bid requirements in
accordance with RCW 39.04.280. The factual basis for this declaration of a public
emergency are set forth in the whereas clauses above, which are adopted and
incorporated herein by this reference.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, as foliows:
In accordance with RCW 39.04.280(1)c), the City Administrator is hereby

authorized to sign purchase orders in the amount of approximately $100,000.00 without
competitive bidding for immediate snow removal within City limits.

| 73



PASSED by the CITY COUNCIL and APPROVED by the MAYOR at its regular
meeting on February 12, 2019.

MAYOR
ATTEST:
CITY CLERK
APPROVED AS TO FORM:
CITY ATTORNEY



